From: Steve Rhode - Chief Pilot <PilotUpdate@psflight.org>
Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2022 1:00 PM

To: cfoley@cityhpil.com

Subject: FAA Public Safety Webinar - Don't Miss
[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

This FAA presentation should be a must-see for all public safety pilots

and people running a drone program.
FAA Public Safety Webinar

Across the country, police and first responders are incorporating drones into

their operations. According to_a recent survey, at least 1,000 police

departments nationwide are using drones. Most of those departments are
focused on training officers. As more agencies purchase drones and encounter
drones, what best practices should become the industry standard:

+ How are police and first responders using drones?

o What are the best practices for using drones?

« What FAA resources are available to law enforcement?

« How to get approval to fly in an emergency situation.

+« When can | fly under Part 107 and when do | need an SGI?

When and How
July 12, 2022

200 pm~—-245pmET
Watch on Youtube

Report All Drone Incidents and Accidents



Here

To help all of us safe it is imperative that all drone crashes and abnormal

incidents be reported online at ReportDroneAccident.

=] : Keep Me Out of Your Trash

If you want to make sure not to miss
any future emails you can whitelist
my email address to avoid your

spam folder.

Whitelist:
PilotUpdate@PSFlight.org

To do that here is a good post on

what vou need {o do with the various

email providers to keep me out of the

frash.

Share Tweet Forward

Do You Know Someone Who Should Be Getting These Emails?

If you know someone who should be on this public safety drone pilot email list like

you are, please tell them to to be added or click the button below.




CONTRIBUTE ARTICLES Do you have tips you want to share with UAS public

safety pilots on my list? Just shoot me your post to .and

{'fl be sure to include it on and send a link out to list members so we

can all learn from your experience.

Copyright © 2022 Wake Forest Fire Department, All rights reserved.
You joined this list from Steve's private UAS Public Safety email list or from the PSFlight org site.

Our mailing address is:
Wake Forest Fire Department
420 Elm Avenue

Wake Forest, NC 27587

Add us o vour address book

Want to change how you receive these emails?

You can update vour preferences or unsubscribe from this list.




From: Steve Rhode - Chief Pilot <PilotUpdate@psflight.org>
Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:00 PM

To: rmontemayor@cityhpil.com

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

« What are the best practices for using drones?

o What FAA resources are available {o law enforcement?

« How to get approval to fly in an emergency situation.

o When can | fly under Part 107 and when do | need an SGI?

When and How
July 12, 2022

200 pm=-245pmET
Watch on Youtube

Report All Drone Incidents and Accidents
Here



To help all of us safe it is imperative that all drone crashes and abnormal

incidents be reported online at ReportDroneAccident.

Keep Me Out of Your Trash

If you want to make sure not to miss
any future emails you can whitelist
my email address to avoid your
spam folder.

Whitelist:
PilotUpdate@PSFlight.org

To do that here is a good post on

what vou need io do with the various

email providers to keep me out of the

frash.

Steve Rhode

Chief Pifot - FAA Commercial - Instrument Aircrait & UAS Fiiot

Volunteer Firefighter
Cell: 919-610-3610
Email: srhode@wakeforestfire.com g8

Public SafetyFlight

SAVING LIVES WITH FLIGHT

@ Share @ Tweet Forward



Do You Know Someone Who Should Be Getting These Emails?

if you know someone who should be on this public safety drone plot email list like

you are, please tell them to to be added or click the button below.

CONTRIBUTE ARTICLES Do you have tips you want to share with UAS public
safety pilots on my list? Just shoot me your post to , and
I'll be sure to include it on and send a link out to list members so we

can all learn from your experience.

Copyright @ 2022 Wake Forest Fire Department, All rights reserved.
You joined this list from Steve's private UAS Public Safety email list or from the PSFlight org site.

Our mailing address is:
Wake Forest Fire Department
420 Elm Avenue

Wake Forest, NC 27587

Add us to your address book

Want to change how you receive these emails?
You can update your preferences or unsubscribe from this list.




From: Steve Rhode - Chief Pilot <PilotUpdate@psflight.org>
Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:00 PM

To: edecristofaro@cityhpil.com

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

« How are police and first responders using drones?

« What are the best practices for using drones?

o What FAA resources are available to law enforcement?

» How to get approval to fly in an emergency situation.

+ When can | fly under Part 107 and when do | need an SGI?

When and How
July 12, 2022

200 pm—-2:45pmET
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

what vou need o do with the various

email providers o keep me out of the

trash.

Steve Rhode

Chief Pilot - FAA Commercial - instrument Aireraft & UAS Filot

Volunteer Firsfighter
Cell: $19-610-3610
Email: sthode@wakeforestfire.com
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

safety pilots on my list? Just shoot me your post to . and

I'll be sure to include it on and send a link out to list members so we

can all learn from your experience.

Copyright © 2022 Wake Forest Fire Department, All rights reserved.
You joined this list from Steve's private UAS Public Safety email list or from the PSFlight.org site.

Our mailing address is:
Wake Forest Fire Department
420 Elm Avenue

Wake Forest, NC 27587

Add us fo vour address book

Want to change how you receive these emails?
You can update your preferences or unsubscribe from this list.




From: Mari Lynn Peters <mlpeters@pdhp.org>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:00 PM

To: Logan, Julie

Subject: Federal relief for mass shooting occurrences
Attachments: image001.png; image002.png
[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Hi Julie,

! hope you are somehow coping with everything going on in Highland Park.

| wanted to touch base with you regarding federal relief for expenses incurred regarding our {ndependence Day incident. Some
of our staff saw something on CNN in regards to the VP’s visit yesterday that we would possibly become eligible for
reimbursement of expenses related to the event, including counseling, etc. Are you aware of any federal or state resources
available to us? If so, | would love to get contact information. | am sure things are upside down by you, as they are for us, and |
do appreciate any data you can share.

Thank you and take care!

Mari-Lynn Peters, CPA | Director of Finance

Park District of Highland Park

West Ridge Center | 636 Ridge Road, Highland Park, Il 60035
847.579.3138

WA PAK &N BECEEATIHN MO

PARK DISTRICT

of HIGHLAND PARK




From: lan Kazian <IKazian@dbfd.org>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:01 PM

To: Schrage, Joe

Subject: RE: Debriefing/Counseling

Attachments: image001.png; image002.png; image003.png; image004.png; image005.png; image006.png;

image007.png; image008.png; image009.png; image010.png

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Still can’t tell ya what a good job you guys did under those circumstances.
Please continue to take advantage of anything you need from us at any time!

Hope all is better...
lan

From: Schrage, Joe <jschrage@cityhpil.com>
Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 12:22 PM

To: lan Kazian <IKazian@dbfd.org>

Subject: RE: Debriefing/Counseling

it will not be a critique or analysis. My understanding is that they will talk about the incident as a group first and then move to 1
on 1 counseling, if desired. There is no pressure. This group was used following the Lt. Ramos LODD in Sterling, IL. The AFFI
found it to be very successful, and recommended it to cur Union President.

Joe Schrage
Fire Chief

Highland Park

City of Highland Park
1130 Central Avenue
Highland Park, Iinois 60035

Fire Department: 847.433.3110
Direct line: 847.926.1067

jschrage@citybhpil.com
sityhpil.com

000

From: lan Kazian <{Kazian@dbfd.org>
Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 10:03 AM
To: Schrage, Joe <jschrage@cityhpil.com>
Subject: RE: Debriefing/Counseling




[EXTERNAL EMAIL]
Thanks Joe, | plan to send my crews, however | will be out of town.

The debriefing, is this kind of a review/hotwash of the incident for all those that responded? | just want to be sure my guys know
what they are attending.

From: Schrage, Joe <jschrage@cityhpil.com>

Sent: Tuesday, July 5, 2022 4:07 PM

To: lan Kazian <iKazian@dbfd.org>; Tom Burke <tburke @northfieldil. org>; David Graf <dgraf@lakebluff.org>; Siebert, Peter
<SiebertP@cityoflakeforest.com>; Andy.Carlson@northbrook.il.us; Cary Lewandowski <clewandowski @villageofglencoe.org>;
Chief Tom Krueger <tkrueger@Irfpd.org>; lambelb@wilmette.com; Danderson@desplaines.org

Cc: Nardomarino, Frank <fnardomarino@cityhpil.com>; Disalvo, Richard <rdisalvo@cityhpil.com>

Subject: Debriefing/Counseling

Chiefs,

On behalf of the City of Highland Park, thank you for your Department response to our City. We are forever grateful for the
services that your crews provided. On Thursday at 3pm at Fire Station 33, 1130 Central Avenue, we will be hosting a
debriefing/counseling session for personnel that have been adversely impacted by the response to our incident.

Our Union, IAFF Local 822, has requested the 100 Club’s services that will provide a short debriefingand 1 on 1

counseling. Please let me know how many personnel you will have attending the session. This is a voluntary event.

Thank you.

Joe

Joe Schrage
Fire Chief

Highland Park

City of Highland Park
1130 Central Avenue
1ighland Park, Hlinois 60035

Tire Department: 847.433.9110

Direct line: 847.926.1067

schrage@citvhpil.com
cityhpil.com

L X v Lin




From: Tsahai Arnett <tarnett@blackpush.crg>

Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2022 1;05 PM
To: nrotering@cityhpil.com

Subject: Meeting Request

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Hello Nancy Rotering,

My name is Tsahai Arnett and I work for an organization called BlackPush Inc. Qur
organization, BlackPush, Inc. works on Social Injustice, Voter Suppression, Gun Violence, and
Ex-Offender Rehabilitation. We shall continue to fight hard and pray for those issues that are
important to us and hope you can join us on this journey.

Shaun has taken the time to visit Uvalde, TX at the school where the children and teachers were
murdered, and also Buffalo, NY where African Americans were gunned down in their own
grocery store just for being African American.

This must stop! We now have a celebration event that turned tragic with many people losing
their lives and even a 2-year-old child losing both parents. We want to make sure we partner
with you all and your community to help amplify what needs to be done when it comes to gun
violence. So Shaun would love to travel and meet with you all in reference to this mass shooting
and have a dialogue about how we can help.

We will be in DC on 07/12/2022 meeting with legislatures along with some of our partners
from the black clergy community. We would like to speak with you and see how we can be of
assistance and even help keep the light on what just happened. Please let us know if you have
time this Thursday after 3 pm or any time on Friday. As a community, we grieve with you and
we are here to stand with you during this difficult time.

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=gwtM6ém8kVLM

God Bless,

Tsahai Arnett

Executive Assistant

BlackPush Inc.

542 Moreland Ave. SE
Atlanta, GA 30316
678-823-7638 ext 105 (office)



404-343-1392 (fax)
www.blackpush.org




From: Media.Chicago@fbi.gov

Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2022 1:07 PM

To: Communications; Natalie Symonds

Cc: lewbelp @aurora.il.us; CCovelli@lakecountyil.gov; hcognac@waucondapolice.com
Subject: Re: Media Inquiry from Madison

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Hi Paris,
Will do.

Thanks,
Natalie

The FBI Chicago Public Affairs Team
Federal Bureau of Investigation-Chicago
2111 W. Roosevelt Rd.

Chicago, lllinois 60608

From: Lewbel, Paris <lewbelp@cityhpil.com> on behalf of Communications <Communications@cityhpil.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 5:56 PM

To: Symonds, Natalie (CG}) (FBI) <NSYMONDS @fbi.gov>

Cc: Media.Chicago <Media.Chicago@fbi.gov>; lewbelp@aurora.il.us <lewbelp@aurora.il.us>; CCovelli@lakecountyil.gcov

<CCovelli@lakecountyil.gov>; hcognac@waucondapolice.com <hcognac@waucondapolice.com>
Subject: [EXTERNAL EMAIL] - Re: Media Inquiry from Madison

Thanks Natalie.

Would you CC myself {Paris) and Chris Covelli on PIO to PIO emails - just so we can see them on our phones.

Thanks,
Paris

From: Natalie Symonds <NSYMONDS@fbi.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 11:50:01 AM

To: hcognac@waucondapolice.com; Communications
Cc: Media.Chicago@fbi.gov

Subject: Media Inquiry from Madison

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Good {almost) afternoon,



| wanted to give you a heads up about an inquiry from Allison Garfield, a report for the Cap Times in Madison,
WI. She was reaching out regarding the information about Crimo driving up to Madison, etc. | have given her
the communications email address.

If you have any questions or need anything else from me please do not hesitate.

Thanks,
Natalie

Natalie V. Symonds
Public Affairs Specialist
FBI Chicago



From: jlogan@cityhpil.com

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:09 PM

To: mipeters@pdhp.org

Subject: RE: Federal relief for mass shooting occurrences

Attachments: image003.jpg; image004.png; image005.png; image006.png; image007.png;

image008.png; image009.png

Hi Mari Lynn,
There is likely no funding to our knowledge at this time. Following is what the City knows so far.

1. There is no County funding, although Lake Cty. Emergency Mgt. is researching if there is anything in ARPA that could apply
and is still available.

2. There is no State or Federal funding, other than FEMA, unless the State and/or Federal legislators ear-mark funding.

FEMA funding is available for collective expenditures of $20.8 million and above.

a. The City needs to have IEMA orchestrate a disaster declaration by the L Governor and have the IL Governor
orchestrate a disaster declaration by the Federal government, to make the FEMA funding available.

b. Eligible expenditures are similar to what was communicated for covid-19 FEMA expenditures (goods, services, OT,
etc.) and generally exclude mutual aid.

Kind regards,
Julie Logan
Finance Director
She / Her / Hers

City of Highland Park

1707 St Johns Avenue
Highland Park, linois 60035

847.926.1020 Office phone
847.432.2617 Fax

jlogan@cityhpil.com
citvhpil.com

000

From: Mari Lynn Peters <mlpeters@pdhp.org>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:00 PM

To: Logan, Julie <jlogan@cityhpil.com>

Subject: Federal relief for mass shooting occurrences

[EXTERNAL EMAILJ
Hi Julie,
I hope you are somehow coping with everything going on in Highland Park.

1



| wanted to touch base with you regarding federal relief for expenses incurred regarding our Independence Day
incident. Some of our staff saw something on CNN in regards to the VP’s visit yesterday that we would possibly become
eligible for reimbursement of expenses related to the event, including counseling, etc. Are you aware of any federal or
state resources available to us? If so, | would love to get contact information. | am sure things are upside down by you,

as they are for us, and | do appreciate any data you can share.
Thank you and take care!

Mari-Lynn Peters, €PA | Director of Finance

Park District of Highland Park

Waest Ridge Center | 636 Ridge Road, Highland Park, 11 60035
847.579.3138

HEOAE GAEN AND BRCHUATIIN MLV

PARK DISTRICT

StHIGHLAND PARK




From: Michael Cody q
Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:09 P

To: nrotering @cityhpil.com

Subject: My prayers to all

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

I want to send my prayers and thoughts to Highland Park residents. | live in Phoenix, but lived in Racine Wisconsin, which
is close to Kenosha shooting. Please send my thoughts to the families of the deceased.

Michael Cody

Sent from my iPad



From: mholleman@cityhpil.com

Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2022 1:10 PM

To: gneukirch@cityhpil.com; nrotering@cityhpil.com; ejason@cityhpil.com;
acivitello@cityhpil.com

Subject: Fw: City of Highland Park eNews: Message from Mayor Rotering

Looks great -- in the future, please remove Nancy's signature and instead just use a handwriting font so it's not
subject to future forgery. Just don't use Comic Sans.

Also, one correction, please add "and" between love and prayers. Not to reissue but if you post this online, |
thought you might be able to update.

Thank you to all the faith communities who have organized vigils and shared love and prayers.

From: City of Highland Park <cityhp@cityhpil.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 12:08 PM

To: Holleman, Michelle

Subject: City of Highland Park eNews: Message from Mayor Rotering

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Hello everyone, please see below for today's draft Message from Mayor Rotering. Thanks!

x| wemms

L
LzAXES
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gi 43 &

View as Webpage July 6, 2022 K

Message from Mayor Rotering

Yesterday we received the names of the individuals murdered in the July 4
shooting that shook our community to its core.

We will forever remember these innocent victims murdered by gun violence.



May their memory be a blessing.

Katherine Goldstein (64) of Highland Park

Irina McCarthy (35) of Highland Park

Kevin McCarthy (37) of Highland Park

Jacquelyn Sundheim (63) of Highland Park
Stephen Straus (88) of Highland Park

Nicolas Toledo-Zaragoza (78) of Morelos, Mexico

A seventh victim who succumbed to injuries within Cook County. Further
information is not available at this time.

| am reaching out to the victim's families and will be joining them as they
mourn. | will stand with them, attending their funerals and offering the
community’s sympathy and support.

Yesterday Vice President Kamala Harris stood at the site of the shooting, in
our beloved downtown. She shared her support and condolences, and offered
continued Federal resources. She brought a message of hope and strength.

There is no roadmap that tells us what to do next, but we cannot allow this
shooting to define us. Today as we begin a new day -- we do so with a
renewed sense of resolve and purpose.

Each day, we will find the strength to take a step forward. No single action will
heal us, but many small steps, taken together as a community will help, and
each of us has a role in the healing process. Kindness matters and small
actions that you take every day will help us heal. Check on your neighbors,
reach out with a kind word or supportive action, continue to check the City's
website and emails for updates, resources, and other information. We want
you to be in touch and connected.

We will get through this together. We will move forward together. We are
Highland Park strong. These are not just words on a page, these are words to
live by.

Nancy R. Rotering
Mayor, City of Highland Park, IL

Healing Services

Thank you to all the faith communities who have organized vigils and shared
love prayers. The city’s webpage lists vigils that we have been made aware of



and resources, visit www.citvhpil.com.

The City will be organizing a community-wide vigil in the days ahead, where
we can come together as one. More information will follow.

Counseling

The City of Highland Park’s Police Department, District 112, District 113, the
American Red Cross, and the FBI Victim Services Response Team, with
additional federal and state partners, are offering counseling services to
students, staff, and community members at Highland Park High School, 433
Vine Street, Highland Park, Wednesday, July 6 through Friday, July 8 from 9
a.m. to 9 p.m. each day. No appointment is necessary.

Lake County residents can also call 211 or visit 211lakecounty.org for mental
health resources and referrals. If you are a mental health professional
interested in volunteering your services, please fill out the provider survey at
211lakecounty.org. 211 support is available in English, Spanish, and many
other languages.

- Community Outreach .

We are seeking the contact information of individuals injured in the shooting to
help provide support. If you know the name of an individual currently in a
hospital or who was injured and returned home, please share contact
information and your relationship to the individual by email
cityhp@cityhpil.com.

Réopening Downtown

The footprint of the crime scene in downtown Highland Park has been
reduced, but a portion of our downtown remains off-limits as the FBI continues
to investigate. We know this is a terribly difficult situation for our local
businesses, and the City has been actively communicating with downtown
business owners to share information and resources. We will reopen the area
as soon as we receive clearance from Federal authorities. We know this
situation is difficult situation and we appreciate your patience.




Lost & Found Established

Individuals who left personal belongings at the parade outside of the secure
perimeter can begin to retrieve them from the lost and found established at City
Hall. Items will be available on the North Side Lawn beginning July 7 at noon.

| Cy‘i:ty-Spon;so‘red Commu“nity Events “

We have temporarily paused City-sponsored community events for this week
and next and anticipate resuming regular programming the week of July 17.
We appreciate your understanding as our resources are heavily focused on the

investigation.
 City-Sponsored Community Events

To help those impacted by Monday's mass shooting, the Highland Park
Community Foundation has established a July 4th Highland Park Shooting
Response Fund,

Here is also a direct link to the donation form. If you prefer, you may send a
check, payable to the Highland Park Community Foundation, to P.O. Box 398,
Highland Park, IL 60035.

Please be aware of online and email solicitations for donations as they may not
be legitimate. Also, protecting the privacy of victims and their families is
paramount. Please be considerate when sharing information on social media,
and do not share personal details about the victims or their families.

City of Highland Park | 1707 5t. Johns Avenue, Highland Park, IL 60035

Unsubscribe acivitello@cityhpil.com
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From: A.C. Anderson <ascander@ucsc.edu>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:10 PM

To: Plazas, Cynthia

Subject: Re: | caught my tenant using marijuana. As a landlord, what can | do about the
situation?

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

for sure. social worker from If was at house today. i’m very appalled by her behaviour and the officer’s
involved.

talk soon

On Wed, Jul 6, 2022 at 12:00 PM Plazas, Cynthia <cplazas@cityhpil.com> wrote:
~ Hi Asher. I'm sorry that you’re having a difficult time at this moment. Currently I am not available as I am
working with our department due to the recent incident in our town. I got your voicemail , and want you to
know that I have received it- but will be away working on this critical incident from the Fourth of July. Please
contact me next week Monday- and we can touch base.

Cynthia Plazas, Ph.D., CCTP-II
Police Social Services Worker

- Highland Park Police Department
1677 Old Deerfield Road
Highland Park, 1L, 60035
Direct: (847) 926-1754

On Jul 5, 2022, at 9:42 AM, A.C. Anderson <ascander@ucsc.edu> wrote:

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

I pose no threat as i have likely torn pelvis cartilage as well as bertolotti syndrome when inhibits
movement at most if not all times. im trying to communicate and use understandable terms
while showing you the severity of the onset of issues im being discriminated against. please see
attachments and with eyes and ears open to new perspectives.

love



ash

today is a very busy day including the chase situation i have to handle and calls. yesterday.
really screwed my schedule for leaving to cali asap.

Will be open to conversation after 1:30PM

https.//www facebook com/BertolottisSyndrome/

---------- Forwarded message ----

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Quora Digest <english-personalized-digest(@quora.com>

Date: Thu, Jun 23, 2022 at 2:59 AM

Subject: I caught my tenant using marijuana. As a landlord, what can I do about the situation?
To: <circusmastera

TOP STORIES FOR ASHER

I caught my tenant using marijuana. As a landlord, what can | do about the
situation?

Tarryn Keightley, | am a single mom, with no support from dad. » Answered February 4, 2021

Waell, Marcia Phelps, | am going to step on your toes here.

Firstly, talk to him about it. Find out if its medicinal or recreational.
Secondly, weed is legal in many places!...

Read more »

[G1d33m [mdesk [md4rs

[51433m 1.6K 314

Who is Bhad Bhabie?

Jean-Marie Valheur, Writer (2020-present) - Answered September 8, 2027



[mdeem [mdsik [=d313

How long will a Tesla last?

Frank Zucco, Intelligent Transportation/Traffic Engineering/loT at Wanco Inc. (2014-present) - Updated Aprii §

AZA — Otis Saroke — Thanks for asking the question.
A MotorTrend

~ o~

Q. What is the predicted longevity of a Tesla?...
Read more »

“1.3M [mds0r [0

Who did Jimi Hendrix say was a better guitar player than him?

teegeg

AEWD?22, Hendrix is my ultimate guitar hero. « Answered May 16

§753°5.

Jimi Hendrix definitely said that there were a few guitarists who he felt were exceptional
musicians. As to which one Hendrix was superior, different people tended to crop ...
Read more »

472.4K s87 [z 4110

Why is Russia risking all for war in 2022?

Colin Riegels, History geek « Answered March 18

Being as fair as | can, | don't think Russia remotely anticipated that things would be this difficult, or
that they would get this much blowback.

Russia has been invading fo...

Read more »

11768
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M;y history teacher gave me a 0 on my history report and suspended me for 3 days
for plagiarizing from a website. Is it right for him to suspend me for a small thing?

Alice Baker, former Law School Professor (2001-2008) - Lipdated March €

What your teacher did, in my opinion, was not right. Assigning you a zero on a single assignment and
suspending you for only three days is FAR less of a penalty than you de...
Read more »

[cadam [mdeix [mdsee

Did Yoko Ono really withhold what John Lennon left Julian Lennon in his will?
Syivie Aimée, Writer » Answered December 11, 2021

The answer to this question, sadly, is yes.
In 1967, as part of his divorce settlement from Cynthia Lennon, John create a trust of £250,000 for

when Julian turned 25. Cynthi...
Read more »

4.4M 33 [ de230

If marijuana is now legal in lllinois how would you still explain it to your workplace
if you took some Friday night and they did a random test Monday morning?

Shane Zimmerman, Cannabis enthusiast for 20 years - Updated July 22, 2020

First and foremost, I'd suggest that anyone who is currently using cannabis in lllinois - recreational or
medicinal - who has a job (or not), to read the Illinois Cannabis ...
Read more »
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What is one thing you wished you never heard or saw on a Zoom meeting?

Kevin Chen -« Updated May 22



| was on a Spanish class zoom and a girl in my class, Jasmine, unmutes herself to answer the question.
She answered it and class moved on, but Jas had forgotten to mute her...
Read more »
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From: clater@cityhpil.com

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:11 PM

To: I

Subject: Fwd: ALERT: Highland Park Shooter Considered Targeting Wisconsin Event: Police - Wed
12:55:46PM

Begin forwarded message:

From: Highland Park Patch <noreply@patch.com>

Date: July 6, 2022 at 12:56:13 PM CDT

To: "Later, Charmain" <clater@cityhpil.com>

Subject: ALERT: Highland Park Shooter Considered Targeting Wisconsin Event: Police — Wed 12:55:46PM

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Patch. BREAKING NEWS

MUST READ: TI
Way to Stop Mo
Bites (It's Genit
[READ MORE]
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Robert Crimo Il confessed to the July 4 parade mass shooting and considered attacking anoth
Read more »
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From: Mari Lynn Peters <mipeters@pdhp.org>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:11 PM

To: Logan, Julie

Subject: RE: Federal relief for mass shooting occurrences

Attachments: image001.png; image002.png; image003.jpg; image004.png; image005.png;

image006.png; image007.png

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]
Thanks so much!
Take care.

fari-Lynn Peters, CPA | Director of Finance

Park District of Highland Park

West Ridge Center | 636 Ridge Road, Highland Park, 1l 60035
847.579.3138

VE

‘ %

' PARK DISTRICT
ofHIGHLAND PARK

From: Logan, Julie <jlogan@cityhpil.com>
Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:09 PM
To: Mari Lynn Peters <mlpeters@pdhp.org>
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
a. The City needs to have [EMA orchestrate a disaster declaration by the IL Governor and have the IL Governor
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
847.432.2617 I'ax

ilogan@cilvhpil.com
cityhpil.com

000

From: Mari Lynn Peters <mlipeters@pdhp.org>

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
state resources available to us? If so, | would love to get contact information. 1am sure things are upside down by you,
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

) PARK DISTRICT

ot HIGHLAND PARK




From: LFrey@cityhpil.com

Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2022 1:12 PM
To: ejason@cityhpil.com

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] RE: Blood Drive Dates
Attachments: HP Blood Drive_07122022.docx

Laura Frey, CPRP

Manager of Senior Services
City of Highland Park
847.432.4110

-------- Original message --------

From: "Feltham, Anna" <anna.feltham2@redcross.org>
Date: 7/6/22 11.00 AM (GMT-06:00)

To: "Frey, Laura" <LFrey@cityhpil.com>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: Blood Drive Dates

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Laura-

I'm still waiting on our schedulers to confirm final hours, but | think the latest they can give us is 5PM. That
means the drive would run from 12PM - 5PM,

Attached is a draft of the flier. | wanted to get a jump on this, so it's ready once everything is
confirmed. Please let me know if you see the need for any changes. | attached as a Word doc. in case you
want to make any additions/edits.

Thanks!

Anna Feltham | Account Manager Il
American Red Cross Blood Services

ison St. Chicago, 1L 80612
©
anna.feltham2@redcross.org

redcrossblood.org | facebook.com/RedCrossBlood
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From: Frey, Laura <LFrey@cityhpil.com>

Sent: Tuesday, July 5, 2022 5:40 PM

To: Feltham, Anna <anna.feltham2@redcross.org>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: Blood Drive Dates

Anna,

Just so we are on the same page — I’'m not thinking to start it later, rather to end it at 6 PM, instead of 5 PM. ©

Please get me the details and the sign-up link asap, so our PR person can get this out to our community as

soon as possible.

Let’s promote it as being hosted by the City of Highland Park at the Highland Park Senior Center / Highland
Park Country Club (1201 Park Avenue West) and if possible, please reference in support of Highland Park’s 4™

of July shooting victims.
Thanks.

Laura Frey, CPRP
Manager of Senior Services

847.432.4110
www.citvhpil.com

Highland Park Senior Center
1201 Park Avenue West — Highland Park

®

From: Feltham, Anna [mailto:anna.feltham2@redcross.org]
Sent: Tuesday, July 5, 2022 3:43 PM

To: Frey, Laura <LFrey@cityhpil.com>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: Blood Drive Dates



[EXTERNAL EMAIL]
Laura-

I'm going to submit this to our schedulers asap. | think the latest they can give me is 5PM, but I'll confirm all
the details once | have them. | will have your digital promo by tomorrow, so you can start promoting.

Thanks!

Anna Feltham | Account Manager Il
American Red Cross Blood Services

220 igon St Chicago, IL 60612

©
anna.teltham2@redcross.org

redcrossblood.org | facebook.com/RedCrossBlood

w‘
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From: Frey, Laura <LFrey@cityhpil.com>

Sent: Tuesday, July 5, 2022 3:05 PM

To: Feltham, Anna <anna.feltham2@redcross.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: Blood Drive Dates

Anna,

We would be honored to host a blood drive, here at the Highland Park Country Club on Tuesday, July 12"‘, in
our Baliroom.

As | mentioned, it would be nice if it ran a little later than 5 pm, so those who work can also participate — but
whatever works best for you in great.

I'm at my desk if you would like to call me to hammer out the details.
I"d like to begin promoting this asap, as many of our community members are asking where they can donate.

Thank youl



Laura Frey, CPRP
Manager of Senior Services

847.432.4110
www.citvhpil.com

Highland Park Senior Center
1201 Park Avenue West — Highland Park

@

From: Frey, Laura

Sent: Tuesday, July 5, 2022 1:39 PM

To: 'Feltham, Anna' <anna.feltham2@redcross.org>
Subject: RE: Blood Drive Dates

I'll let you know very soon — but it looks like the Tuesday would work for us. | would also suggest we go past 5
PM, so working adults can also participate,

Laura Frey, CPRP

Manager of Senior Services

847.432.4110
www.citvhpil.com

Highland Park Senior Center
1201 Park Avenue West — Highland Park

w

From: Feltham, Anna [mailto:anna.feltham2®@redcross.org]
Sent: Tuesday, July 5, 2022 1:28 PM

To: Frey, Laura <LFrey@cityhpil.com>

Subject: Blood Drive Dates

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]
Hi Laura-

My team and | identified a few date options this month for a blood drive. Please let me know your preference
asap. We will expedite everything to get the schedule up on our website and the digital material created for
you.



Tuesday, July 12
Wednesday, July 13
Tuesday, July 26

My best,

Anna Feltham | Account Manager I
American Red Cross Blood Services

n St. Chicago, IL 60612
©

anna.feltham2@redcross.org
redcrossblood.org | facebook.com/RedCrossBlood

Ve SOMETHING
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CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the orgamzatnon Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the
sender and know the-content is safe. : :

CAUTION: This email ongmated from outside of the orgamzatuon Do not click links or open attachments unless you recogmze the
sender and know the content is safe.
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Communities
that Care

Join fogether to help tave lived.

Donate blood in honor of the Highland Park parade victims

The Red Cross stands ready to support blood needs during this time. Our organization has the ability
to move blood around the country to where it's needed most. Right now, the best way people can
help is to make an appointment to donate blood in the days and weeks ahead by calling

1-800-RED-CROSS or visiting RedCressBlood. org

Blood Drive hosted by:
The City of Highland Park
The Highland Park Senior Center &
The Highland Park Country Club

Tuesday, july 12, 2022
12:00 PM - 5:00 PM

Highland Park Senior Center - Ballroom
1201 Park Avenue West

Highland Park, IL 60035
1-800-RED CROSS | redcrossblood.org | Download the Blood Donor App

L2017 The Acmverivan Nattonal Red Cross | 14880115
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From: cglasco@cityhpil.com

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:12 PM
To: 7735161516@vzwpix.com
Subject: RE:

You're right, sometimes it takes an incident close to home to open our eyes and heart to the needs of others.



From: Dan Forbes <dforbes@speerfinancial.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2022 1;12 PM
To: Logan, Julie

Subject: Our Thoughts and Prayers
[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Julie:

My condolences for the loss of life and my thanks to the City’s first responders after the July 4 shooting. My thoughts
and prayers for those who lost loved ones and the survivors, as well as for you, Ghida, the Mayor and other City leaders
who are dealing with the after effects.

| see the HP Community Foundation’s July 4 Shooting Response Fund. If there is any other way we can help, please let
me know.

Dan

Daniel D. Forbes

President

Speer Financial, Inc.

230 W. Monroe St., Suite 2630
Chicago, Hllinois 60606
Telephone: 312-780-2281

The information provided s presented os on aid in decision making. Current and future market conditions and interest rates ore subject to change and any
information based on such market conditions and interest rates is not guaranteed.

Emails from this firm normally contain confidentiol and privileged maoterial and are for the sole use of the intended recipient. Use or distribution by any unintended
recipient is prohibited, and muay be 4 violation of low. If you believe that you received this email in error, please do not read this email or any attached items. Please
delete this email ond all attachments, including any copies thereof, and inform the sender that you have deleted the emuil, ol sttachments and any copies

thereof. Thank you.

Speer Financial, Inc.
A federally registered municipal advisor and charter member of the National association of Municipal Advisors “NAMA®.



From: Betsy Brint '

Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2022 1:12 PM
To: Craig Leva
Cc: Terri Olian; David L. Reich; Sofia Alvarez; Alyssa Knobel; Amy Small; Bobbie Hinden;

Cookie Kohn; Cristina Mota; David Israel; Don Stewart; Eric Ephraim; Jamie Strait; Jean
Meadows; Joe Reinstein; Jon Levey; Julie Kraff;, Karen Reisin; Laurie Levin; Nancy Mills;
Robyn Schuster; Taryn Kessel; Tom Koulentes; Tonia Arrington; Debby Finn; Jim

Hospodarsﬁ'I Jennifer Aiello; Kevin Ryan; AJ Chalom; La Casa de Isaac; Sara Sher; Gail
Brown

Subject: Re: HPCF July 4th Shooting Response Fund

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Hi All,

A quick update to let you know a few of the things that have been going on behind the scenes. We are trying to
help as many individuals as possible and our community as a whole.

Before I list them, T just want to say that I don’t think Terri sleeps.

e We established a trustworthy fund through which we could raise and methodically distribute money to
help victims and survivors

o We began to spread the word via social media, e-blasts, community leaders and news organizations
about the Fund (this continues today)

o We provided meals and snacks to counselors and community members seeking help at Highland Park
High School, Ravinia and Oak Terrace Schools

o We connected with organizations, businesses, community members and even states who offered support
and resources

I am grateful to all of you for being leaders in our community and giving so much of yourselves. Thank you for
offering to help. I promise we will be calling on you soon.

Please spread the word about our Response Fund. It is a much safer way to gift funds than through a Go Fund
Me site. We offer transparency in giving and are a trusted fiduciary.

With gratitude,
Betsy

On Jul 6, 2022, at 12:41 PM, Craig Leva <craigleva@arwayconfections.com™> wrote:

Betsy and Terri,



Thank you for setting up this fund. My family and | certainly plan to contribute, and I'd be happy to join the
committee that is tasked with the grant process.

I think it's safe to say that we all feel a bit numb. It feels so surreal that this has happened in our

community. It's hard to make sense of it all. That said, we can make real impact here and help lift our
community with funds that we are able to raise. | do think we should also make a significant contribution
from our endowment towards this endeavor. [n addition, | believe that any funds that come in over the next
few months should be added to this response fund, whether earmarked or not. Just my two cents.

We obviously have a lot of healing to do as a community. | am proud to be a part of the HPCF and the fact
that we will be able to make a direct impact in that healing process.

Thank you again for your leadership on this.
Craig
Craig Leva

Arway Confections / Long Grove Confectionery
craigleva/@arwayconfections.com

From: Terri Olian <terri@hpcfil.org>
Sent: Tuesday, July 5, 2022 5:53 PM

To: David L. Reich <dreich@LKSU.com>; Sofia . Alvarez Alyssa Knobel

- Amy Small ; Betsy Brint ) ; Bobbie Hinden
>; Cookie Kohn N >: Craig Leva <craigleva@arwayconfections.com>;
Cristina Mota ; David Israel <david.israel@mesirow.com>; Donald Stewart
<dstewart@stewmil.com>; Eric Ephraim < raim@firstbankhp.com>; Jamie Strait Muller

Jean Meadows >; Joe Reinstein
<jlevey@highlandparkbank.com>; Julie Kraff i ; Karen Reisin ; Laurie Levin
<llevin@foxswibel.com>; Nancy Mills ; Robyn Schuster ; Taryn Kessel

mi Olian <terri@hpcfil.org>; Tom Koulentes ; Tonia Arrington
’ : ; Deborah Finn <dfinn@dist113.org>; James Hospodarsky

<jhospodarsky@cityofhighwood.org>; Jennifer Aiello <jaiello@cityhpil.com>; Kevin Ryan <kryan@nssd112.org>; Al
Chalom <aj@hpcfil.org>; La Casa de [saac ; Sara Sher

Jon Levey

Subject: HPCF July 4th Shooting Response Fund

Dear Board, ALC, and AC Members,

To help those directly impacted by yesterday's mass shooting, we have established a July 4th
Highland Park Shooting Response Fund. All contributions to the Response Fund will go directly to
victims and survivors or the organizations that support them.

There is a donation page on our website with an active donation form. People can access it from the
homepage of our website https://www.hpcfil.org.

Here is also a direct link to the donation form.

We are so grateful for your help in getting the word out about our efforts to help the victims and
survivors of yesterday’s shooting - and really our community as a whole.

Please let us know if you have any questions or need anything else.
Betsy & Terri
2



Terri Olian

Executd jrector, Highland Park Community Foundation

¢ = 0847-433-4100 = terriwhpcfilorg* www.hpcfil.org

Give Where You Live! Donate here or by mail (P.O. Box 398, Highland Park, IL 60035). Click here for more options!

Click here to recommend a grant from your Donor-Advised Fund if you are a client of Fidelity Charitable, Schwab Charitable,
or BNY Mellon

Celebrating 30 years of making a difference, 1992-2022!
Together, we will continue to improve the lives of individuals and enhance cur community as a whole!

Betsy Brint | Broker
@properties

607 Central
Highland Park, Il 60035
847.347.5202



From: akamischke@cityhpil.com

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:14 PM
To: sneuman@cityhpil.com

Subject: Fwd: Graphic Images From Shooting
Attachments: IMG_7754.PNG

I can complete a supplement when I return on Friday but I wanted to forward this on. The original was on a snapchat
account for @joseph.morales.

Sent from my T-Mobile 5G Device
Get Qutlook for Android

From: Noemy Rangel W>
Sent: Wcdncsday, July 6, 2022, 12:38

To: Kamischkc, Amber <akamischke@cityhpil.com>
Subject: Graphic Images From Shooting

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Good Afternoon,

My namc is Nocmy Rangcl. I am Nicolas Toledo’s granddaughtcr. Latcly, I have been coming across this specific image of my grandpa on
different social media platforms. T am not sure who else has it. But I do know that Josiah Morales is the one who originally posted the photo on
Snapchat. It then has been spreading on other platforms such as Tik Tok. Seeing this graphic image of my Grandpa and my other family
members on the ground brings in a whole wave of emotions. Anger, sadness, and disturbance are just some of those emotions. I just wanted to
bring this to your attention and hopefully help me stop the spread of this image. Thank you so much for all your help. My family and I greatly
appreciate it.

- Noemy Rangel



Sent from my iPhone



From: jlogan@cityhpil.com

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:15 PM

To: dforbes@speerfinancial.com

Subject: RE: Our Thoughts and Prayers

Attachments: image002.png; image003.png; image004.png; image005.png; image006.jpg

Thank you, Dan. It is such a sad time.

Kind regards,
Julie Legan
Finance Director
She / Her / Hers

City of Highland Park
1707 St Johns Avenue
Highland Park, Illinois 60035

847.926.1020 Office phone
847.432.2617 Fax

jlogan@citvhpil.com
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
me know,

Dan
Daniel D. Forbes

President
Speer Financial, Inc.



230 W, Monroe St., Suite 2630
Chicago, iilinois 60606
Telephone: 312-780-2281

The information provided is presented us-un aid in decision muking. Current und future market conditions and interest rates are subfect to change and eny
information based on such market conditions and interest rates is not guaranteed.

Emails from this firm normally contain confidentiol and priviieged material and are for the sofe use of the intended recipient. Use or distribution by any unintended
recipient is prohibited, ond may be a violotion of law. If you believe thot you received this email in error, pleose 8o not reod this emaoil or any attached items. Please
delete this email and oll attachments, including any copies thereof, und inform the sender that you hove deleted the email, ol attachments ond eny copies

thereof. Thonk you.

Speer Financial, Inc.
A federally registered municipol advisor and charter member of the National associotion of Municipal Advisors “NAMA”.



From: rmontemayor@cityhpil.com

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:15 PM
To: CONeill@cityhpil.com

Cc: sgallagher@cityhpil.com
Subject: Report of UAV damage

It was brought to my attention on 7/4/22 that minor damage was sustained to the larger UAV known to us as the
Matrice M 210 v1. During setup for a deployment I was notified the leg landing bracket assembly snapped.
Without this part it makes landing the UAV dangerous thus the decision was made to ground it. Luckily we had
the smaller Mavic to provide aerial support when needed. I’ve already taken steps to notify our distributor to
provide an estimate for the part to replace it. They responded quickly and I'll provide you that info when I
receive it.

Reyes Montemayor
Patrol Officer / PBC & UAYV Coordinator

usok prav
icuun Irom e I
Fagbhad k.

Highland Park Police Department
1677 Old Deerfield Rd
Highland Park, Hllinois 60035

847.432.7730 Non-Emergency
@847.433.01 80 Fax

Rmontemavor{@citvhpil. com
cityhpil.com




From: Executive Director <executivedirector@icma.org>

Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2022 1:16 PM
To: gnheukirch@cityhpil.com

Subject: Highland Park Shooting
[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Dear Ghida:

On a day that most Americans reserve for celebrations and time with family, friends, and neighbors, our
nation was devasted by the news of yet another mass shooting. Yesterday’'s attack in Highland Park only
added to the unrelenting grief we are feeling as violence continues to plague our communities. | know that |
am not alone in my anger and outrage over repeated and senseless gun violence, and | am sure that you and
your colleagues are left with your own painful thoughts in the wake of this tragic event.

As we hear personal details about the victims we mourn alongside their families and friends and our hearts
are heavy.

As a former city manager, | know this terrible event will have a lasting impact on your city. | also know you will
face several challenges during the healing process. Please take time to care for your personal well-being. Many
will look to you, | encourage you to rest and practice self-care when possible. In the weeks ahead, your
community will rely heavily on your guidance, and throughout you have my unwavering support.

My heartfelt prayers and sincerest condolences to the friends and families of the victims, and all those
impacted. Please contact me at executivedirector@icma.org if | can be of any assistance.

Sincerely,

Marc A. Ott
CEQOfExecutive Director
Executive Office



From: chersch@cityhpil.com

Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2022 1:17 PM

To: James.F.Schroth@usps.gov

Cc: Benjamin.D.Giese@usps.gov

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Investigation Perimeter Update
Jim,

Public Works will pickup items left at the parade site and take them to the City Hall lawn on Friday. Should anyone ask,
they can pick their belonging up at City Hall Friday - Tuesday.

We will be sending a communication today to businesses, and will include the information you provided below.
Take care...

Carolyn Hersch
Business Development Manager

City of Highland Park
1707 St John’s Ave.
Highland Park, IL 60035
847.926.1027

Sent from my iPhone

On Jul 6, 2022, at 9:23 AM, Schroth, James F - Highland Park, Il <James.F.Schroth@usps.gov> wrote:

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Carolyn

Due to the recent events the Postal service is unable to deliver to the area that is closed due to the
ongoing investigation

Please advise the business that the Post Office currently has these delivers on hold at the office

if any business affected by the investigation choses to pick their mail up at the post office they can do
so during normal business hours

The post office will resume delivery once the authorities allow the Postal service access

Once this occurs any mail that is currently on hold will be delivered

Thank you for all your assistance in theses trying times

James Schroth

Postmaster

Highland Park IL 60035-9998

From: Hersch, Carolyn <chersch@cityhpil.com>
Sent: Tuesday, July 5, 2022 5:52 PM




To: Hersch, Carolyn <chersch@cityhpil.com>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Investigation Perimeter Update

CAUTION: This email originated from outside USPS, STOP and CONSIDER before responding,
clicking on links, or opening attachments.

Dear Business Owner,

As the FBI and Lake County Major Crimes Unit continue to remain on site for the crime scene
investigation, businesses within the investigation perimeter must remain closed until further
notice. The perimeter has recently been updated. The closure area includes: Central Avenue
from Green Bay Road to St Johns, First Street from Laurel Avenue to Elm Place, and Second
Street from Laurel Avenue to Elm Place (map attached). Please check your email for updates
for changes to the investigation perimeter and business reopening.

Carolyn Hersch
Business Development Manager

City of Highland Park
1707 St Johns Avenue

Highland Park, linois 60035
847.926.1027

chersch@citvhpil.com

cityhpil.com

000




From: jlogan@cityhpil.com

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:18 PM

To: FinancelT@cityhpil.com

Subject: FW: Phone Calls

Attachments: image001.png; image015.png; image016.png; image017.png; image018.png;
image019.jpg; image003.png; image004.png; image005.png; image007.png;
image008.jpg

Team,

Please do not respond to any calls from a Kevin Bush. Please keep yourself safe at all times and immediately report any unusual calls
or unusual in-person public behavior to your supervisor.

Kind regards,
Julie Logan
Finance Director
She / Her / Hers

City of Highland Park

1707 St Johns Avenue
Highland Park, llinois 60035

847.926.1020 Office phonc
847.432.2617 Fax

jlogan@cityhpil.com
citvhpil.com

000

From: Bonaguidi, William <WBonaguidi@cityhpil.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 11:58 AM

To: McCaulou, Kristi <kmccaulou@cityhpil.com>; Cameron, Gerald <gcameron@cityhpil.com>

Cc: Neukirch, Ghida <gneukirch@cityhpil.com>; Logan, Julie <jlogan@cityhpil.com>; Levinstein, Adam
<alevinstein@cityhpil.com>

Subject: RE: Phone Calls

Hello everyone,

Adam and I met and discussed the call. While it was certainly an unsettling call, it doesn’t meet the
criteria of a threat per criminal law. Please know that I appreciate Adam reporting this and I'm not
diminishing it in any way. I'm simply replying about the legalities of it. We sincerely encourage
anyone who receives anything remotely close to a threat to report it to us right away.

I've shared the details of the call with the Lake County Major Crimes Task Force and they have not
heard that name until this. They will let me know if they do. We have no record in HP records of Kevin
Bush.



Adam is checking to see if he can obtain the phone number of the caller so the HP team can try and
identify him and go from there.

Of note, the global media attention is subjecting us to an influx of calls. Some are bizarre and
completely unrelated to our parade investigation. Regardless, please do not hesitate to reach out with
anything of concern.

Respectfully,
Bill

William Bonaguidi
Deputy Chief of Police

City of Highland Park

Highland Park Police Departient
1677 Old Deertield Road
Highland Park, Hinois 60035

847.432.7730 - Main
847.926.1764 - Direct
847.432.2024 - Fax

Q00

From: McCaulou, Kristi <kmccaulou@cityhpil.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 11:11 AM

To: Cameron, Gerald <gcameron@cityhpil.com>; Bonaguidi, William <WBonaguidi@cityhpil.com>

Cc: Neukirch, Ghida <gneukirch@cityhpil.com>; Logan, Julie <jlogan®cityhpil.com>; Levinstein, Adam
<alevinstein@cityhpil.com>

Subject: Phone Calls

Ger and Bill,

The individual who threatened Adam Levinstein on the phone tried calling me and Christine Icasiano at our direct office lines. The name
that appeared on the caller D was Kevin Bush. | did not answer the phone and he did not leave a message. Christine is on FMLA.
Please let me know if you need anything else.

Take care,
Kristi McCaulou
Deputy Finance Director

City of Highland Park

1707 St Johns Avenue
Highland Park, Illinois 60035

847.926.1021 Office Phone
847.432.2617 Fax



kmccaulou@cityhpil.com
citvhpil.com

£ LvLin

CLICK HERE TC
VIEW YOUR WATER USE
MYWATERUSE CITYHPIL.COM




From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Yes, Matthew. | have copied Bill Brennan on this particular dumpster.

Please have LRS circle the streets around the secured zone (see attached map) to collect overflow garbage cans. The
two in particular are on St Johns and Central, southwest comer. All the roads on the perimeter of the secured zone and
open, and garbage cans are overflowing. Please have them empty out ASAP.

rkanapareddy@cityhpil.com

Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:18 PM

MRobins@LRSrecycles.com

BKenney@LRSRecycles.com; wbrennan@cityhpil.com; ejason@cityhpil.com;
JONEeill@cityhpil.com; CManley@LRSrecycles.com; LBroadway@LRSRecycles.com;
VWoods@LRSrecycles.com; DSchwarz@LRSrecycles.com; KMackay@LRSrecycles.com;
HCampos@LRSrecycles.com; JBurnette@LRSrecycles.com; CVasalos@LRSrecycles.com;
GStrom@LRSrecycles.com; JConnell@LRSRecycles.com; JLarsen@LRSrecycles.com

RE: Dumpster Pickup- In Crime Zone

image001.png; image018,jpg; image019.png; image020.png; image021.png; image022.png;
image023.png; image024.png; image025.png; image026.png; image027.png; image028.png;
image029.png; image030.jpg; image007.png; image009.png; image011.png; image013.png;
image015.jpg; CBD Roads Closed Map-Jul 2022.pdf

Thanks,

Ramesh

Ramesh Kanapareddy, P.E., CFM
Assistant City Manager/Director of Public Works

City of Highland Park
Department of Public Works
1150 Half Day Road
Highland Park, 1llincis 60035

O: 847.432.0807
F: 847.432.9907

rkanapareddy@cityhpil.com
citvhpil.com

0O 0L

b CLICK HERE TO
VIEW YOUR WATER USE
MYWATERUSECITYHPIL.COM




From: Matthew Robins <MRobins@LRSrecycles.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 12:37 PM

To: Kanapareddy, Ramesh <rkanapareddy@cityhpil.com>

Cc: Bill Kenney <BKenney@LRSRecycles.com>; Brennan, William <wbrennan@cityhpil.com>; Jason, Erin <ejason@cityhpil.com>;
O'Neill, Joe <JONeill@cityhpil.com>; Cris Manley <CManley@LRSrecycles.com>; Lorrie Broadway
<LBroadway®@LRSRecycles.com>; Vera Woods <VWoods@LRSrecycles.com>; Diane Schwarz <DSchwarz@LRSrecycles.com>; Kim
Mackay <KMackay@LRSrecycles.com>; Hector Campos <HCampos@LRSrecycles.com>; Justin Burnette
<JBurnette@LRSrecycles.com>; Chuck Vasalos <CVasalos@LRSrecycles.com>; George Strom <GStrom@LRSrecycles.com>;
Joshua Connell <JConnell @LRSRecycles.com>; John Larsen <JLarsen@LRSrecycles.com>

Subject: RE: Dumpster Pickup- In Crime Zone

Importance: High

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]
Hi again Ramesh,

The FBI just instructed ours driver to stay away from this particular area, as we recently attempted to provide the requested city
service.

Please let us know if we can lend a hand in any other way.

Matthew

 §]

Matthew Robins

Municipal Service Coordinator
LRS

5500 Pear! Street, Suite 200 .
Rosemant, 1L 60018 PO— o
224-233-1714 (Phone)

LRSRECYCLES.COM | 844.NEED.LRS

From: Matthew Robins

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 10:54 AM

To: Kanapareddy, Ramesh <rkanapareddy@cityhpil.com>

Cc: Bill Kenney <BKenney@LRSRecycles.com>; Brennan, William <wbrennan@cityhpil.com>; Jason, Erin <gjason@cityhpil.com>;
O'Neill, Joe <JONeill@cityhpil.com>; Cris Manley <CManley@LRSrecycles.com>; Lorrie Broadway
<LBroadway®@LRSRecycles.com>; Vera Woods <VWoods@LRSrecycles.com>; Diane Schwarz <DSchwarz@LRSrecycles.com>; Kim
Mackay <KMackay@{RSrecycles.com>; Hector Campos <HCampos@LRSrecycles.com>; Justin Burnette
<JBurnette@LRSrecycles.com>; Chuck Vasalos <CVasalos@1 RSrecycles.com>; George Strom <GStrom @ LRSrecycles.com>;
Joshua Connell <jConnell@LRSRecycles.com>; John Larsen <JLarsen@LRSrecycles.com>

Subject: RE: Dumpster Pickup- In Crime Zone

Thanks for the phone call and email, Ramesh.
Happy to share this with our entire HP team so that we can provide service and lend a hand in any way possible to the city.
Take care and please feel free to keep us posted on anything else that we are able to assist with.

All the best,
Matthew



From: Kanapareddy, Ramesh <rkanapareddy@cityhpil.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 10:47 AM

To: Matthew Robins <MRobins@LRSrecycles.com>

Cc: Bill Kenney <BKenney@ LRSRecycles.com>; Brennan, William <wbrennan@cityhpil.com>; Jason, Erin <ejason@cityhpil.com>;
O'Neill, Joe <ICNeill@cityhpil.com>

Subject: Dumpster Pickup- In Crime Zone

Importance: High

Matthew,

I am following up the message | had left regarding an overflow dumpster pickup. As you can imagine, emergency
personnel are working non-stop at the tragedy site to work through various aspects of the investigation. We do have a
dumpster is located within the cordoned off perimeter of downtown Highland Park to be picked up.

The dumpster is located on Second St, just north of Laurel Ave. You will need fo enter through Laurel Ave, and check in
with FBI fo enter the secured zone. | have copied Battalion Chief Bill Brennan who can assist LRS to get to the dumpster
location.

If you need additional information please let us know.

Thanks,
Ramesh

Ramesh Kanapareddy, P.E., CFM
Assistant City Manager/Director of Public Works

City of Highland Park
Department of Public Works
1150 Half Day Road

Highland Park, Illincis 60035

O: 847.432.0807
F: 847.432.9907

rkanapareddyv@cityhpil.com
citvhpil.com

\ CLICK HERE TO
| VIEW YOUR WATER USE
MYWATERUSE.CITYHPIL.COM
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From: Selin Darkalstanian <selin.darkalstanian@warnermedia.com»>

Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2022 1:20 PM
To: Communications@cityhpil.com
Subject: HLN Interview Request
[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Hi Chris,

I'm a Producer with HLN, CNN's sister network. Are you available to join us for a few minutes tomorrow
morning via video call at the top of the 6,7,8, or 9am CT hour to discuss the latest in the parade shooting?
Please reply all and let us know if you are available.

Thank you,

Selin Darkalstanian
Editorial Producer, HLN
323-327-1800



From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Attachments:

ejason@cityhpil.com

Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:20 PM

HR@cityhpil.com

Accepted: Critical Incident Crisis Debriefing Session
attachment.ics



Subject: Accepted: Critical Incident Crisis Debriefing Session

Location: Conference Room Pre-Session (Cityhall)
Start: 7/7/2022 1:00 PM
End: 7/7/2022 3:00 PM

Show Time As: Busy

Recurrence: (none)

Organizer: UNKNOWN

Required Attendees: ejason@cityhpil.com



From: ejason@cityhpil.com

Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2022 1:20 PM
To: HR@cityhpil.com
Subject: Accepted: Critical Incident Crisis Debriefing Session

Attachments: attachment.ics



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



From: lain Burchell <iain.burchell@mega.global>

Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2022 1:22 PM

To: Communications@cityhpil.com

Subject: Media request - image of Robert Crimo il dressed as a woman
{EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Hello, this is a media request from Iain Burchell on behalf of The Mega Agency, a news and picture agency
syndicating content to major media outlets around the world.

I hope you can help, or point me in the right direction.

I've seen the image of Robert Crimo III dressed as a woman credited to Major Crime Task Force, Lake County.
I'm checking to see if it is available to the media, and if Mega can get it to syndicate and license to media
outlets.

The photo can be fully credited.

Regards, lain

lain Burchell
Content Specialist

iain.burchell@mega.qglobal

TheMegaAgency.com




From: jlogan@cityhpil.com

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:23 PM

To: FinancelT @cityhpil.com

Subject: FW: TIME SENSITIVE: FOIA Text Message Preservation July 4th incident

Attachments: image001.png; image002.gif;, image003.png; image004.png; image005.png; image007.png;
image008,jpg

Importance: High

Team,

| will record the Finance group text and the IT group text we have had. if you have any other text that fits with the definitions below. Please follow
the directions for saving the text. Thank you.

Kind regards,
Julie Logan
Finance Director
She [ Her / Hers

City of Highland Park
1707 St Johns Avenue
Highland Park, Illinois 60035

847.926.1020 Office phone
847.432.2617 Fax

jlogan@cityhpil.com
citvhpil.com

000

From: Jason, Erin <ejason@cityhpil.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 10:56 AM

To: All Users <All_Users@cityhpil.com>

Subject: TIME SENSITIVE: FOIA Text Message Preservation July 4th Incident
Importance: High

Colleagues —
As you can imagine there are many moving parts right now. One thing we are trying to stay ahead of are the numerous FOIA

requests that the City has received. If you were involved in sending/receiving text messages regarding the incident of the Fourth
of July from time of the shooting through the coming weeks they must be preserved as responsive FOIA documents.




. -
Follow this link to create a folder with your name {last name, first name) and drop your screenshots of any text messages that

must be preserved in there:

QACITY CLERK\Ath OF JULY 2022\July 4th Text Messages

Please complete this task as soon as possible. ALSO please continue to update if you receive more texts.
Thank you!

Erin K. Jason (she/her)
Assistant City Manager

City of Highland Park
1707 St iohns Avenue ’
Highland Park, lliinois 60035
Direct: 847.526.1004
eiason@citvhpil.com

cityhpil.com

000



From: Matthew Robins <MRobins@LRSrecycles.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2022 1:24 PM
To: Kanapareddy, Ramesh
Cc: Bill Kenney; Brennan, William; Jason, Erin; O'Neill, Joe; Cris Manley; LorrieBroadway;

Vera Woods; Diane Schwarz; Kim Mackay; Hector Campos; JustinBurnette; Chuck
Vasalos; George Strom; JoshuaConnell; John Larsen

Subject: RE: Dumpster Pickup- In Crime Zone
Attachments: CBD Roads Closed Map-Jjul 2022.pdf
[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Thanks for the update and attachment.
Ops - can we please send a driver back over to the area, as quickly and safely as possible?

Matthew

Matthew Robins

Municipol Service Coordinator
LRS

5500 Pearl Street, Suite 200
Rosemont, IL 60018
224-233-1714 (Phone)

=101G16 15 I

LRSRECYCLES.COM | 844 NEED.LRS

From: Kanapareddy, Ramesh <rkanapareddy@cityhpil.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:18 PM

To: Matthew Robins <MRobins@LRSrecycles.com>

Cc: Bill Kenney <BKenney@LRSRecycles.com>; Brennan, William <wbrennan@cityhpil.com>; Jason, Erin
<ejason@cityhpil.com>; O'Neill, Joe <JONeill@cityhpil.com>; Cris Manley <CManley @LRSrecycles.com>; Lorrie
Broadway <LBroadway@1RSRecycles.com>; Vera Woods <VWoods@1RSrecycles.com>; Diane Schwarz
<DSchwarz@LRSrecycles.com>; Kim Mackay <KMackay@LRSrecycles.com>; Hector Campos
<HCampos@LRSrecycles.com>; Justin Burnette <JBurnette@LRSrecycles.com>; Chuck Vasalos
<CVasalos@LRSrecycles.com>; George Strom <GStrom@LRSrecycles.com>; Joshua Connell
<JConnell@LRSRecycles.com>; John Larsen <JLarsen@LRSrecycles.com>

Subject: RE: Dumpster Pickup- In Crime Zone

Yes, Matthew. | have copied Bill Brennan on this particular dumpster.

Please have LRS circle the streets around the secured zone (see attached map) to collect overflow garbage
cans. The two in particular are on St Johns and Centradl, southwest comer. All the roads on the perimeter of the
secured zone and open, and garbage cans are overflowing. Please have them empty out ASAP.



Thanks,

Ramesh

Ramesh Kanapareddy, P.E., CFM
Assistant City Manager/Director of Public Works

City of Highland Park
Department of Public Works
1150 Half Day Road

Highland Park, Illinois 600135

0: 847.432.0807
F: 847.432.9907

rkanapareddv@cityhpil.comn
cityhpil.com

CLICK HERE TO
VIEW YOUR WATER USE
SAYWATERUSE CITYHPIHL COM

From: Matthew Robins <MRobins@1LRSrecvcles.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 12:37 PM

To: Kanapareddy, Ramesh <rkanapareddy@cityhpil.com>

Cc: Bill Kenney <BKenney@LRSRecycles.com>; Brennan, William <wbrennan@cityhpil.com>; Jason, Erin
<ejason@cityhpil.com>; O'Neill, Joe <JCNeill@cityhpil.com>; Cris Manley <CManley@1 RSrecycles.com>; Lorrie
Broadway <LBroadway@LRSRecycles.com:>; Vera Woods <VWoods@LRSrecycles.com>; Diane Schwarz
<DSchwarz@LRSrecycles.com>; Kim Mackay <KMackay@LRSrecycles.com>; Hector Campos
<HCampos@LRSrecycles.com>; Justin Burnette <JBurnette@1RSrecycles.com>; Chuck Vasalos
<CVasalos@| RSrecycles.com>; George Strom <GStrom@LRSrecycles.com>; Joshua Connell
<JConnell@LRSRecycles.com>; John Larsen <JLarsen@LRSrecycles.com>

Subject: RE: Dumpster Pickup- In Crime Zone

Importance: High

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]
Hi again Ramesh,

The FBI just instructed ours driver to stay away from this particular area, as we recently attempted to provide the
requested city service.

Please let us know if we can lend a hand in any other way.



Matthew

Matthew Robins

Municipal Service Coordinator
LRS

5500 Pearl Street, Suite 200
Rosemont, IL 60018 o o B
224-233-1714 {Phone}

LRSRECYCLES.COM | 844.NEED.LRS

{
jin
&
o

From: Matthew Robins

Sent: Wednesday, luly 6, 2022 10:54 AM

To: Kanapareddy, Ramesh <rkanapareddy@cityhpil.com> :

Cc: Bill Kenney <BKenney@1RSRecycles.com>; Brennan, William <wbrennan@cityhpil.com>; Jason, Erin
<gjason@cityhpil.com>; O'Neill, Joe <JONeill@cityhpil.com>; Cris Manley <CManley@1RSrecycles.com>; Lorrie
Broadway < Broadway@1RSRecycles.com>; Vera Woods <VWoods@LRSrecycles.com>; Diane Schwarz
<DSchwarz@1 RSrecycles.com>; Kim Mackay <KMackay@LRSrecycles.com>; Hector Campos
<HCampos@LRSrecycles.com>; Justin Burnette <JBurnette@LRSrecycles.com>; Chuck Vasalos
<CVasalos@LRSrecycles.com>; George Strom <GStrom@LRSrecycles.com>; Joshua Connell
<JConnell@LRSRecycles.com>; John Larsen <JLarsen@iRSrecycles.com>

Subject: RE: Dumpster Pickup- In Crime Zone

Thanks for the phone call and email, Ramesh.

" Happy to share this with our entire HP team so that we can provide service and lend a hand in any way possible to the
city.

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
<ejason@cityhpil.com>; O'Neill, Joe <JONeill@cityhpil.com>

Subject: Dumpster Pickup- In Crime Zone

Importance: High

Matthew,

{ am following up the message | had left regarding an overflow dumpster pickup. As you can imagine,
emergency personnel are working non-stop at the tragedy site to work through various aspects of the

3



investigation. We do have a dumpster is located within the cordeoned off perimeter of downtown Highland Park
o be picked up.

The dumpster is located on Second St, just horth of Laurel Ave. You will need to enter through Laurel Ave, and
check in with FBI to enter the secured zone. | have copied Battalion Chief Bill Brennan who can assist LRS to get
to the dumpster location.

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

rkanapareddyv@citvhpil.com
citvhpil.com

CLICK HERE TO
TR VIEW YOUR WATER UBE
F MAYWATERUSE CUTYHPIL COM
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From: Barbara de Nekker <bdenekker@communitytheantidrug.org>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:25 PM

To: Hyndman, Amy

Subject: Re: Hope you & loved ones are safe

Attachments: image001.png; image002.png; image003.png; image004.png; image005.png
[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

I'm relieved to hear that you and Sam were not there, and at the same time am so thankful for all your
colleagues. You all, state police and neighboring forces were AMAZING.

Get Qutlook for Android

From: Hyndman, Amy <ahyndman@gcityhpil.com>

Sent: Tuesday, July 5, 2022, 10:42 AM

To: Barbara de Nekker <bdenekker@communitytheantidrug.org>
Subject: RE: Hope you & loved ones are safe

Thank you Barbara! I'm lucky to say | was not at the parade and didn't have to witness the
carnage. I'm so devastated for this community and my co-workers who witnessed this senseless act

of violence.

Amy Hyndman
District 112 School Rescurce Officer
CERT Coordinator

City of Highland Park

1677 Old Deerfield Rd
Highland Park, lllinois 60035

Office: 847-924-1122
Fax: 847-432-2024

ahyndman@cityhpil.com

cityhpil.com

600

From: Barbara de Nekker <bdenekker@communitytheantidrug.org>
Sent: Monday, July 4, 2022 3:28 PM
Subject: Hope you & loved ones are safe

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]



We are heartbroken to hear of the loss of life and of the many injured at Highland Park's fourth of July parade.
Our condolences to the families and loved ones. It is a trauma that many of us likely feel reverberating in our
souls. We so very much hope you are all safe, and would be grateful if you could let us know if you and your
loved ones are okay.

We are thankful to those of you who came to the aid of others in this moment. Our brave law enforcement
officers ran towards the danger. The HPHS band leader and football coaches got the students marching in the
parade safely home to our families. Municipal leaders are coordinating a swift and thorough emergency
response. Our school staff are arranging for counselors to be on-site tomorrow for those who need it. Qur
CTAD members are helpers as part of their jobs, but it is also part of their character. Thank you for being you.

Consider sharing Text a Tip as a resource to students and other residents when a counselor or other adult is
not available. The counselors are based out of Lake Bluff and are therefore familiar with what is happening.
Details below and on attached infographic. You can also share from CTAD's Facebook and Twitter. We will post
the resource frequently this coming week.

e lLocal, trained mental health counselors

e 24/7 anonymous help for yourself or a friend

o Text "224Help" to 844-823-LEAD (5323).

e Also available as an app "Lake County Help"
With love and gratitude,

Barbara de Nekker

Executive Director

Community — The Anti-Drug Coalition
Office: 224-765-CTAD (2823)

Mobile U (2523)
bdenekker@CommunityTheAntiDrug.org
www.CommunityTheAntiDrug.org

Text-a-Tip: 24/7 anonymous support for students who need help for themselves or a friend. Text 224HELP to 844-823-LEAD
(5323) to connect with a trained counselor.



From: Assad, Samah F <sfassad@cbs.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:26 PM

To: acivitello@cityhpil.com

Cc: Hickey, Megan

Subject: CBS 2 request for interview/information
Attachments: image001.png

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Hello Amanda,

My name is Samah Assad and | am a journalist with CBS Chicago. I'm working with my colleague Megan Hickey {(cc’d) on a story
airing tonight and we have some questions for Highland Park police about Crimo’s past encounters with the agency.

At the time of the 2019 encounters, lllinois’ red flag law was in place and gave law enforcement agencies the authority to file a
petition with a court for a firearms restraining order without family of the individual filing a complaint or pressing charges. In this
case, the Illinois State Police said because an order wasn’t filed, that in part wouldn’t have allowed ISP to take any action when
the FOID card application was submitted.

Is someone available from the police department to talk to us about this today? We want to know, was the Highland Park Police
Department aware of the red flag law and the agency’s ability to petition the court for an order after the 2019 suicide attempt
and threats made by Crimo? If so, why did the police department choose not to file an order based on the evidence it had from
those two encounters?

Thank you,
Samah

Samah Assad (she/her)
Investigati oducer
M:
sfassad@viacomebs.com
@sassadnews

@CBS CHICAGO




From: apalbitska@cityhpil.com

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:26 PM

To: ddayboll@cityhpil.com

Subject: PDF Email Files

Attachments: image001.png; image002.png; image003.png; image004.png
Hello,

Below is the link to where the PDFs of the emails from 7.4 — 7.5 are saved. There are about 41 different PDFs, | tried to break
them up by date and time.

Please share this information with Ben as | know he wanted to have some of the EF team work on review and redaction as well.

QACITY CLERK\4th OF JULY 2022\July 4th Mass Shooting FOIA Requests\pst Email Files

Ashley Palbitska, MBA
Deputy City Clerk
Chief FOIA Officer

City of Highland Park

Citv of Highland Park
707 St Johns Avenue
1lighland Park, Hlinois 60035

847.926.1034
847.432.7625 Fax

apalbitska@citvhpil.com
cityhpil.com

000



From: acivitello@cityhpil.com

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:27 PM

To: CallAnsweringPoints@cityhpil.com

Cc: gneukirch@cityhpil.com; ejason@cityhpil.com; acivitello@cityhpil.com
Subject: Call Answering Points - Talking Points

Attachments: image003.gif; image004.png; image005.png; image006.png; image002.png
Good afternoon all,

Thank you all for your strength, compassion, and commitment to our community during this difficult time. Your role in supporting our
community providing frontline responses to their questions is so appreciated.

s Do not discuss the ongoing invcstigation at all.
e Do not offer your personal opinion regarding the investigation.
¢ Do not answer any questions regarding the investigation.

Refer them to the website or encourage them to sign up for eNews (www.citvhpil comy/signup).

Below please find talking points to assist you in referring or responding to common inquiries. As always, please don’t hesitate to reach
out if you need any additional support.

Thank you for all you do!

If a caller is a member of the media:

All media inquiries for the City of Highland Park are managed through the City Manager’s Oflice — Communications Division. Refer all
requests to Amanda Civitello & Erin Jason by email to communications@cityhpil.com. Let the caller know that either Communications
Manager Civitello, Assistant City Manager Jason, or other designated PIO will follow up.

If callers request specific information about the investigation:

Please refer them to our websile (o read the mosl recent media releases regarding the progress of the investigalion, or sign up for the
City’s eNews to receive these updates directly at www.citvhpil.com/signup. Tf the caller says their question is not answered in a recent
release, please refer them lo communicationsi@citvhpil.com.

Where can callers find the most up-to-date information?
Please visit the City’s website, www.cityhpil. com, for the most recent updates and media releases regarding this situation.

How can callers sign up to receive updates?
Sign up for the City’s eNews at www.citvhpl.com/signup to receive important updates from the City direct to your inbox.

How can callers receive emergency alerts?
Sign up for emergency public safety and weather alerts from the City at smart911.com.

How can callers help support individuals impacted by this tragedy, either financially or through volunteer service?
Visit the City’s websile al www.cityhpil.com/residenthighland park_strong.php for this information as il becomes available.

How can I access supportive care for myself or a loved one?
Visit the City’s website at www citvhpil.com/resident’highland park_strong php for this information.

How can I pick up my vehicle located within the investigation area?
The FBI will contact you directly with instructions on how and when to pick it up.



Amanda Civitello
Communications Manager
she / her / hers

City of Highland Park

1707 St Johns Avenue
Highland Park, THinois 60035

847.920.1043

acivitello@citvhpil.com

cityhpil.com

000




From:

Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2022 1:29 PM

To: wevans@cityhpil.com; Idelaney@cityhpil.com; bsoldano @cityhpil.com;
egirona@cityhpil.com; dbekov@cityhpil.com; edecristofaro@cityhpil.com;
agalati@cityhpil.com; sgallagher@cityhpil.com; jeldridge @cityhpil.com

Subject: Schools at Risk ???

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Privileged and Confidential

HP, Highwood, Deerfield Schools..... at risk?
Mr. Crimo convenience store conveniently located near Braeside school and his child gets
charged.
HP is part of the problem.

Self-defense, if you see something, say something.

----- Origin -

From: ,

To: wevans@cityhpil.com <wevans@cityhpil.com>; idelaney@cityhpil.com <idelaney@cityhpil.com>;
bsoldano@cityhpil.com <bsoldano@cityhpil.com>; egirona@cityhpil.com <egirona@cityhpil.com>; dbekov@cityhpil.com
<dbekov@cityhpil.com>; edecristofaro@cityhpil.com <edecristofaro@cityhpil.com>; agalati@cityhpil.com
<agalati@cityhpil.com>; sgallagher@cityhpil.com <sgallagher@cityhpil.com>; jeldridge@cityhpil.com
<jeldridge@cityhpil.com>

Sent: Tue, Jul 5, 2022 11:24 pm

Subject: Premeditated - Retalliation???

HP has many schools and blame the abused children victims for its problems.

This seems to be a democrat pattern blame children to surrender to violence.

Highland Park is ignoring the signs displayed in the community,

“responsibility,” don’t blame others,..." the signs likely were placed in the city due to history of
lawlessness

and reports from its friends caring for the victims.

The city is aware of all the residents in its area and probably nearby suburbs as well as

HP Chase bank and Fire Dept. serves HP and Highwood, especially the businesses near
schools.

Mr. Crimos’ convenient store w employees that reside in HP reported to police any unusual
behavior in the store.

Mr. Crimo was a mayoral candidate likely to know who his support system the persons voting
for him are. Retaliation????



Note; Ivoted for the current mayor.

The “Do Nothing” bench at the veteran’s memorial is democrat policy.
Democrats illegal policies, Blame children a pattern of abuse to surrender to violence,

From®

To: wevans@gityhpil.com <wevans@gcityhpil.com>; Idelaney@cityhpil.com <ldelaney@cityhpil.com>;
bsoldano@cityhpil.com <bsoldano@cityhpil.com>; egirona@cityhpil.com <egircna@cityhpil.com>; dbekov@cityhpil.com
<dbekov@cityhpil.com>; edecristofaro@cityhpil.com <edecristofaro@cityhpil.com>; agalati@cityhpil.com
<agalati@cityhpil.com>; sgallagher@cityhpil.com <sgallagher@cityhpil.com>; jeldridge@cityhpil.com
<jeldridge@cityhpil.com>

Sent: Tue, Jul §, 2022 10:52 am

Subject: Hire/House Mother F__k_rs

HP gave father Crimo a business license and allowed him to run for mayor likely to spy
on his voters (supporters)
many, many years ago to monitor his family w the intention of blaming his son.
The city certainly is permitting more mother f__k_rs to house in HP for more
violence blame children and prejudice.

_____ rigi —
rron: W
To: wevans@gcityhpil.com <wevans@cityhpil.com>; Idelaney@cityhpil.com <Idelaney@cityhpil.com>;

bsoldano@cityhpil.com <bsoldano@cityhpil.com>; egirona@gcityhpil.com <egirona@cityhpil.com>; dbekov@gcityhpil.com
<dbekov@gityhpil.com>; edecristofaro@cityhpil.com <edecristofaro@cityhpil.com>; agalati@cityhpil.com
<agalati@cityhpil.com>; sgallagher@cityhpil.com <sgallagher@cityhpil.com>; jeidridge@cityhpil.com
<jeldridge@cityhpil.com>

Sent: Tue, Jul 5, 2022 8:28 am

Subject: HP Blame the Children

HP pattern of abuse. Religiously Observant Community, Irresponsible.
Bible: Deuteronomy ‘Get away w crime,

HP lie in wait til the children reach the age of majority and blame the children the next
generation, stopped.
The fathers (mother f__Kk_rs) are the problem and get away the children get the blame, guilt trip
to surrender.

Ex: "Feb 9, 2018 — Carly Rousso, who was 18 when she killed a young girl after "huffing" a
cleaning product behind the wheel,"

To: wevans@cityhpil.com <wevans@cityhpil.com>; Idelaney@cityhpil.com <ldelaney@cityhpil.com>;
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
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Sent: Tue, Jul 5, 2022 12:25 am
Subject: ltalians Get Lawsuits

Italians get lawsuits.
HP was aware of Crimo for 12+ yrs criminal behavior and they arrested me for taking a tennis
lesson.

To: wevans@cityhpil.com <wevans@cityhpil.com>; Idelaney@cityhpil.com <ldelaney@cityhpil.com>;
egirona@gcityhpil.com <egirona@cityhpil.com>; bsoldano@cityhpil.com <bsoldano@cityhpil.com>; dbekov@cityhpil.com
<dbekov@cityhpil.com>; edecristofaro@cityhpil.com <edecristofaro@cityhpil.com>; agalati@cityhpil.com
<agalati@cityhpil.com>; sgallagher@cityhpil.com <sgallagher@cityhpil.com>; jeldridge@cityhpil.com
<jeidridge@cityhpil.com>

Sent: Mon, Jul 4, 2022 9:51 pm

Subject: Do Nothing

If Crimo? (suspect father) was HP mayor running mate, the city was certainly aware of the
problems as
Crimos employees certainly knew and reported the suspicious behavior.
The city protected those employees as they live in HP,
The city bench “Do Nothing” is what HP gov't is doing.

From:
To: wevans@cityhpil.com <wevans@!|!Lpil.com>; Idelaney@cityhpil.com <ldelaney@cityhpil.com>;

egirona@cityhpil.com <egirona@cityhpil.com>; bsoldano@cityhpil.com <bsoldano@cityhpil.com>; dbekov@cityhpil.com
<dbekov@cityhpil.com>; edecristofaro@cityhpil.com <edecristofaro@cityhpil.com>; agalati@cityhpil.com
<agalati@cityhpil.com>; sgallagher@cityhpil.com <sgallagher@cityhpil.com>; jeldridge@cityhpil.com
<jeldridge@cityhpil.com>

Sent: Mon, Jul 4, 2022 1:02 pm

Subject: HP Gatherings

Gatherings in HP:

Due to Lake County hospitalS and its' Drug stores injury and withhold cure, other
problems below '

it can only expect problems therefore it should Not have public gatherings.

“Nov 4, 2018 — An Itasca man drowned and an Elgin woman remains missing after
being swept away
while swimming with a group at Park Avenue Beach Sunday.”

The sick victims have more knowledge than the lvy League attorney's.

To: wevans@cityhpil.com <wevans@cityhpil.com>; Idelaney@cityhpil.com <ldelaney@cityhpil.com>;
egirona@cityhpil.com <egirona@cityhpil.com>; bsoldano@cityhpil.com <bsoldano@cityhpil.com=>; dbekov@cityhpil.com
<dbekov@cityhpil.com>; edbristofaro@cityhpil.com <edecristofaro@cityhpil.com>; agalati@cityhpil.com
<agalati@cityhpil.com>; sgallagher@cityhpil.com <sgallagher@cityhpil.com>, jeldridge@cityhpil.com
<jeldridge@cityhpil.com>



Sent: Sun, Jul 3, 2022 12:58 pm
Subject: Beware: Lake County at Risk

Spiderman protecting Medicine is sick (stopped), King of the Road sex offenders,
home wreckers,
opposition and other violence against USA citizens.

The HP City Hall landscaping is full of weeds and bare trees poorly maintained:
“A neglected, poorly maintained landscape isn't just an eyesore. It could be a serious health

hazard!
A landscape that isn’t cared for won't just kill your home’s curb appeal: It could very well kill

you t00.”

----- Original Message-----

From:m'
To: wevans@cityhpil.com <wevans@cityhpil.com>; Idelaney@cityhpil.com <ldelaney@cityhpil.com>;

egirona@cityhpil.com <egirona@cityhpil.com>; bsoldano@cityhpil.com <bsoldano@cityhpil.com>; dbekov@cityhpil.com
<dbekov@cityhpil.com>; edecristofaro@cityhpil.com <edecristofaro@cityhpil.com>

Sent: Sun, Jul 3, 2022 11:37 am

Subject; Change: 911

The system that caused the NY 911 tragedy is likely involved w USA continued violence
recruiting others.

From: .

To: wevans@cityhpil.com <wevans@gcityhpil.com>; idelaney@cityhpil.com <idelaney@cityhpil.com>;
egirona@cityhpil.com <egirona@cityhpil.com>; bsoldano@cityhpil.com <bsoldano@cityhpil.com>; dbekov@cityhpil.com
<dbekov@cityhpil.com>; edecristofaro@cityhpil.com <edecristofaro@cityhpii.com>

Sent: Sun, Jul 3, 2022 11:10 am

Subject: Change: Go to the Dogs

Irresponsible Blame Innocent Children ADHD run away to military Not making their own
decisions.

Sex offenders want followers (go to the dogs, etc.) mother raped violated repeatedly

her children misdiagnose w ADHD to run away to military, surrender life to stranger danger to
blame others.

Phrase "go to the dogs” “to deteriorate, SLIP, to become ruined : to change to a much
worse condition”

Prisoners have more knowledge than the Ivy League attorneys.
Offenders being released from prisons to work both ways? Beware.

Immigration to fight w USA citizens and overseas surrender to MEast takes control?

Correct Mistakes, Stop MBG, give mother (me) my children.



----- Original Me
From! i
To: wevans@cityhpil.com <wevans@cityhpil.com>; idelaney@cityhpil.com <idelaney@cityhpil.com>;

egirona@cityhpil.com <egirona@cityhpil.com>; bsoldano@cityhpil.com <bsoldano@cityhpil.com>; dbekov@cityhpil.com
<dbekov@cityhpil.com>; edecristofaro@cityhpil.com <edecristofaro@cityhpil.com>; jeldridge@cityhpil.com
<jeldridge@cityhpil.com>

Sent; Sat, Jul 2, 2022 9:52 pm

Subject. Beware - Offenders Demand Payment

Democrats illegal policies entrap USA citizens to pay violence.

HP organization arresting USA citizens for crimes we don’t commit wants a commitment.
Entrap anger (accidents, violate privacy, smash/grab...) to pay the violence.
Police are to protect the violence and USA citizens pay the violent offenders.

Crime and stalking allowed to resident’s intent to cause anger crybabies to make false charges
of prejudice to pay violence.

“a person or thing that offends, does something wrong, or causes problems.”

“a person who commits an illegal act.”

A pattern of abuse spread to Lake County “wealthy North Shore suburbs of Chicago”

No Traffic Stops,

No house calls for domestic violence...

..... Oriai S
From? _ )

To: wevans@cityhpil.com <wevans@cityhpil.com>; Idelaney@cityhpil.com <ldelaney@cityhpil.com>;
egirona@cityhpil.com <egirona@cityhpil.com>

Sent: Sat, Jul 2, 2022 8:09 pm

Subject: Accidents, No Accident

Accidents are no accident; police take report and blame me.
Police aid and abet a dangerous crime against mother to entrap the children to stranger
danger, bugs, worse.
Religiously observant communities’ separate children are physical and mental abuse.

My windshield was smashed, rear bumpers (2) dented, car keys stolen and the HP police take
report and blame me.

The car is legally parked and no one is inside why are the police blaming me?

I suspect the police involved w car report incidents blaming me may know who the angry
person is doing it.



The police are advising MBG and city services to ban me from most HP facilities and
residences.

They must have No contact w my children.

Do these police taking my accident reports have contacts w my children and prohibit a family
connection w father MBG?

Are the police (MBG's contacts in the police dept.) trying to entrap me to confess to their and
other crimes against me (Italians)?
Do the police know of more accidents against me?

Democrats illegal policies result no jobs, entrap accidents to disability to get paid rent.

Choose your battles, leave mother and children alone the city is part of the problem, protecting
violence against us.

If you are not the intended recipient of this message or their agent, or if this message has been addressed to you
in error, please immediately alert the sender by reply email and then delete this message and any attachments.

If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any use, dissemination, copying, or storage of
this message or its attachments is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. Unauthorized forwarding, printing,
copying, distribution, or use of such information is strictly prohibited.

This message and any included attachments are intended only for the addressee. The information contained in
this message is confidential and may constitute proprietary or non-public information under international, federal, or state
laws. Unauthorized forwarding, printing, copying, distribution, or use of such information is strictly prohibited and may be
unlawful.



From: Poorna Randall <prandall@fbi.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:31 PM

To: acivitello@cityhpil.com

Cc: Steven Amato

Subject: Press Releases/Social Media Re Highland Park Incident
[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Hi Amanda,

| am with the FBI's Victim Services Response Team. Can you please give me a call at 202-834-4209?

Thank you,
Poorna Randall



From: ‘ Nathan Lerner

Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2022 1:31 PM

To: police@cityhpil.com

Subject: FW: crises intervention for first responders ATTN Chief
[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Hello Chief

My Name is Nathan Lerner | am a former police officer of 25 years, | started with the Bernalillo County Sheriffs
Department in Albuguerque New Mexico. | am writing you this e-mail because | am a former LEO and most importantly |
was a resident of Highland Park Il for over 22 years. | grew up there and | went to that parade almost every fourth of July
and used to sit on those chairs at Port Clinton Square (that’s what they called it back then). | graduated in 1988 from
Highland Park High school, along with my brother and both my sisters. It was surreal watching the media coverage from
New Mexico. Along with that, | wished | was there to help my other brothers and sister in blue with the incident and the
aftermath of the stress and destruction.

I would like to offer you and your department the services of Armor Up New Mexico. We are a small part of two larger
organizations, Armor Up America, and Safe Call Now {Armorupnow.org and Safecallnow.org), what we care about is
crisis intervention for first responders across the US. We have seen a spike in first responder suicides across the nation
and here in our very own state. What we are trying to do is bring education, prevention, and a safe place for our first
responders to turn to when they are in crisis. Whether it be a suicide crisis, drugs or alcohol intervention, or domestic
violence, we want to provide a safe place for all first responders and their families to turn to for help.

One of our main goals is to provide crisis intervention, in our state and around the country. We help our national
chapter with money to fly first responders to facilities should they need that intervention, but to also provide education
and stop the stigma of mental health in first responders and help their families, as well. Families of first responders
have to deal with the consequences, but never get the training necessary to deal with PTSD, or recognize the symptoms
in their first responder or in themselves. We also need to think of the children of first responders, who have to deal
with all of this and their own bouts of PTSD. We need to stop fooling ourselves by thinking that the pressures of having
a parent or a first responder don't affect our kids in the same way it affects adults.

This is a personal mission for my wife, as a first responder spouse, she was the granddaughter of a first responder. We
both have lived the heartache of PTSD, and the stigma of mental health. In my research as | get deeper into this
program, | have learned one thing, first responders don’t like asking for help, they don’t trust peer counseling and they
don’t trust their departments not to label them. They don’t want to bother their spouses or feel that their spouses
understand what’s happening. We have been married for 17 years, and together for 19, we have lived firsthand what
can happen when first responders don’t get the help they need because they are afraid of the stigma, the label, or the
consequences that come with seeking help. Many first responder families end up divorced, or in domestic violence
situations because the spouses don’t understand how to deal with what is happening to their first responders.

Chief after the situation you had on the fourth of July | implore you just to pass around our website via e-mail, and all
the other contact pages | have listed below. Please also pass around this number if your troops want to see someone to
talk to, or they don’t want to talk to your Department Psychologist they can call this number it's toll-free and listed
below. They can actually go to the contact part on our page and it will give you a list of places to contact us at. with our

1



troops which includes the hotline number for a safe call. | can’t say | went through what your guys went through but |
have experienced numerous critical incidents in my career. If it was not for my wife who got me into counseling | would

probably be divorced, and not very happy at this moment.

https://armorupnm.com/

https://www tiktok.com/@armor_up new_mexico
https://www.instagram.com/armorupnewmexico/?hl=en
https://www.facebook.com/armorupnm

206-459-3020
Thank you for your time.

Remember stay HP Strong Semper Fl

Nathan Lerner

Armor Up New Mexico
505-385-5370
ArmorUpNewMexico@gmail.com




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

I am with the FBI's Victim Services Response Team. Can you please give me a call at 202-834-4209?

Thank you,
Poorna Randall



From: ashley kelly “

Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2022 1:33 PM
To: Hersch, Carolyn
Subject: Re: Impacted businesses

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

One more question, is there a list of businesses that have online shopping and shipping? Some HP at heart families who
live elsewhere are asking. Thanks!

Ashley

>On Jul 6, 2022, at 10:51 AM, Hersch, Carolyn <chersch@cityhpil.com> wrote:

>

> Ashley,

>

> Thank you for reaching out. The FBI and Lake County Major Crimes Unit are still investigating the crime scene, and
appreciate everyone's patience until it is completed. When we receive information from the state and federal
government about how businesses can recoup losses due to the July 4 shooting, we will notify them and the public. We
will also seek feedback from our businesses to understand what their needs are and how we can help them to recover
from this horrific and tragic event.

>

> Kind regards,

>

> Carolyn Hersch

> Business Development Manager

>

>

> 1707 St Johns Avenue

> Highland Park, Illinois 60035

> 847.926.1027

> chersch@cityhpil.com

>
https://linkprotect.cudasve.com/url?a=https%3a%2{%2fcityhpil.com&c=E,1,GEXg2h8sSNcEYFoBdCHhoNOvXFxgOHPItOlw
QAkQM6EHLOquXIvrKCSix3B0fxkoCdPXm2SoFEAWDSGQ7vv2cesvdcPemrTbSUlk1EcleE&typo=1

> From: ashley kelly

> Sent: Wednesday, luly 6, 2022 10:41 AM

> To: Hersch, Carolyn <chersch@cityhpil.com>
> Subject: Impacted businesses

>

> [EXTERNAL EMAIL]




>
>

> Hi Carolyn,

>

> | hope that you and your family are coping well. | have been thinking about so many things the past couple of days.
One has been the forced closure of our businesses within the crime scene.

>

> Are they receiving any government funds to aid in lost revenue during this time they are unable to open? Is that
something they could be eligible for? Have you come up with any creative ideas to help them, either by asking for
community support or in the reopening plan? They all have employees too with lost wages.

>

> A colleague of mine mentioned a grand reopening, advertised in other communities as well, hoping they will come
support them too. | would predict there are a fair number of hp residents that are going to have a hard time returning to
central and second for awhile, though. Having an organized reopening 'event' also might clash with all of the mourning
that is happening and seem insensitive. But, an idea for bringing them business.

>

> I'm just a local person (in heathcare, so no business experience) that cares about what happens to our businesses and
want to help out! Our support HP/HW businesses page that came out of Covid is ready to bring awareness to any efforts
out there to help now....... again.

>

> Thanks for your time!

>

> Ashley Kelly

>



From: Anita Busch <anita@victimsfirst.org>

Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2022 1:34 PM
To: Herrera Giron, Jacqueline

Cc: Stone, Kim; Zachary Blair

Subject: VICTIM Services Offered, Contact INFO
[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Jacqueline,

These are contacts you may not have:

1). ADA: Lake County CIL is the CIL for Highland Park. Kelli Brooks is the ED of Lake County CIL, which is run by
and for people with disabilities living in Lake County. Jim is the advocacy coordinator
EMAILS ARE: kelli@lccil.org, JKlem@lccil.org

Any questions or more help for disabled:
Amber Smock:

Director of Advocacy, Access Living
www.accessliving.org

2). GIVE AN HOUR (licensed professionals in lllinois to assist with mental help donating their time):

CEQ IS: Dr. Trina Clayeux, cellphone:_

email: tclayeux@giveanhour.org

3). Max Gruber, gruberm@ada.org (providing dental care due to injury)
Highland Park is his hometown. He lives in Chicago and works at the American Dental Association (ADA). Coordinating
their efforts for Highland Park, IL. (312) 440-2914

Warmly,

Anita Busch

President, VictimsFirst

www.victimsfirst.org

Family of deceased from the Aurora, CO Theater mass shooting
Family of survivor from the Las Vegas mass shooting

{213) 440-1771

Dr. Zachary Blair

VP, VictimsFist
www. victimsfirst.org
(360) 580-2771




From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:
Attachments:

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Nancy Rotering <

Wednesday, July 06, 2022 1:34 PM

Alyssa Knobel; Michelle Holleman

Mass Shooting Protocol and Playbook

Mass-Shooting-Protocol.pdf; attachment.html; Mass-Shooting-Playbook.pdf;

attachment.htm|



UNITEDONGUNS

Mass Shooting Protocol

A RESOURCE FOR U.S. MAYORS AND CITY MANAGERS

PUBLIC Sarah C. Peck The Mass Shooting Protocol & Playbook is a two-part resource intended tor mayors,
HEALTH Emily Nink city managers, and their staft. The Protocol covers the first 24 hours of the responsé.
ADVOCACY and The supplemental Playbook provides best practices and resources city officials can
INSTITUTE Mark Gottlieb use to prepare for, respond to, and recover from a public mass shooting.




Mass Shooting Protocol:

The First 24 hours

This Protocol is the result of research involving mayors, first responders, and others who have
responded to a public mass shooting. Below you will find key decisions that you, as mayor, will
need to make during the first 24 hours of the response. There are also links to the companion
guide, the Mass Shooting Playbook, for additional information and resources to help with
ongoing crisis management. Additionally, best practices for preparedness actions can be found
in the Playbook. To obtain a copy of the Playbook, please visit www.UnitedOnGuns.org.

1. Communications

Your primary role during the response is as the “communicator-in-chief.” Decide in
consultation with your police chief who will speak about what. Often law enforcement
officials communicate details about the investigation. The public will ook to you for
messaging about public safety, updates about the victims, referrals to mental health
resources, and messages of unity and healing. Secure the press area to prevent
unauthorized officials from speaking to the press pool.

Your first challenge is to get as much information as possible, as often as possible, from
law enforcement. Ask for a dedicated police official whose sole responsibility is to keep
you informed.

Schedule early and regular press briefings, even when there isn't much new information
to share, to prevent the development of rumors and misinformation.

Release information relating to the shooting via one social media account (ideally
operated by the public safety office), to be amplified by the city and other agencies.
Direct all press inquiries to this single, monitored account.

Host a dedicated webpage where all public information about the shooting is posted
and updated, along with names of the victims. This will reduce the intense pressure to
respond promptly to public record requests.

Consider including a “How You Can Help” section for the public in press releases and all
social media and online messages.

For more information, see Playbook Chapter 1 on Communications.

2. Emergency Operations

Confer with your City Counsel, Chief Administrative Officer, Chief of Staff, and Chief
Financial Officer. This “C4 team” should meet daily to coordinate emergency operations
and reduce legal exposure to the city and its employees.



Consider making a local declaration of emergency. There is no downside to making the
declaration immediately; it triggers mutual aid agreements, has the potential to defray

‘costs relating to police overtime costs, and may protect the city from legal risks.

For more information, see Playbook Chapter 2 on Emergency Management.

3. Victims and the Families

L]

Prioritize the needs of victims and family above all else. Designate a member of your
staff to serve as family liaison to keep you updated on their needs.

Ensure the location of the Family Reunification Center (also called the Family and
Friends Reception Ceniter) is separate from the press center. It should be scalable and
have a secure perimeter to prevent the press from approaching grieving family members.

The families of victims should receive death notifications in the most timely, humane,
private way possible. Applicable law can slow the process. You may need to engage with
the coroner’s office and law enforcement to urge them to find a way to speed the release
of victims’ names to their families.

Confirm there are dedicated victim advocates assigned to the families.

After the families are notified, quickly establish the Family Assistance Center to ensure
the immediate needs of victims and families are met, including appropriate mental health
services.

Spend time with the victims and families. Take their calls (including calls from families
from previous shootings who have invaluable insights to share). Visit victims in the
hospital. Attend their funerals if invited. Consult the families when planning vigils and
developing the distribution protocol for public donations.

Activate national resources. The American Red Cross can help you establish the Family
Assistance Center. The FBI Victim Services Division has significant family assistance
resources and expertise you can tap into even if the FBI is not the lead law enforcement
agency in the case. However, the city must initiate the request for assistance from both
organizations.

For more information, see Playbook Chapter 3 on Victims and Families.

4. Donations

Arrange a funding mechanism to accept donations immediately. If the city has a
501(c)(3) charitable entity already established, you can use it for this purpose (forming

a new one may take too long). Alternatively, the National Compassion Fund (www.
nationalcompassionfund.org) or a trusted community foundation can receive the funds.
Whichever funding mechanism you choose, establish the fund as soon as possible after
the shooting and encourage the public to give to only one, trusted fund to avoid fraud.



The distribution of the fund should be developed in close consultation with the survivors
and families of the victims. Families of victims of previous shootings strongly recommend
that 100% of the funds go to the victims and their families. However, some cities have set
aside a small portion of the funds raised for education initiatives, mental health services for
affected communities, and the restoration of a place of worship damaged during an attack.

For more information, see Playbook Chapter 5 on Donations.

5. Vigils

The community needs to grieve and will want to arrange a vigil immediately following the
shooting. Security may be required, which could delay the vigil if the law enforcement
response is ongoing. :

Take steps to avoid politicizing the shooting. Doing so will further traumatize the families
of the victims. This may mean limiting the speaking roles of elected officials (including
visiting VIPs).

If the shooting is a hate crime or perpetrated by a member of a marginalized faith or
ethnic group, the risk of retaliation against that group may become an issue. Consult with
faith leaders to host an interfaith vigil if relevant.

For more information, see Playbook Chapter 9 on commemorations.

6. VIP Visitors and Elected Officials

Federal, state, and local elected officials may converge on the city. Direct them to
activities that will be helpful to victims and their families.

For more information, see Playbook Appendix B on VIP Visits.

7. Mental Health

Trauma is a major issue. You will be affected, as will your staff, first responders, families
of the victims, and nearly everyone in the city at the time of the shooting. Consuit with
your local public health agency, victim assistance experts, and local mental health
providers as soon as possible to develop trauma-informed messaging.

Provide information about available mental health resources in your press briefings. Take
the time to learn about psychological first aid to ensure that victims and families receive
appropriate services.

For more information, see Playbook Chapter 10 on Mental Health.



Mass Shooting Protocol:

Checklist

{Selected actions from the comprehensive checklists found in the Playbook]}

Communications

[J Establish a regular schedule for communicating with the press and follow it.
[1 Decide which officials will speak and in what order at press conferences.
[1 Keep messages simple, credible, and consistent. Correct misinformation.

Emergency Operations

[0 Activate the Emergency Operations Center. Request regular briefings from a designated
law enforcement official.

[0 Assemble your “C4” team to provide coordination and legal compliance.
O Consider whether to make a declaration of emergency.

Establish Family Reunification and Assistance Centers

1 Work with law enforcement, the American Red Cross, the FBI, and local partners to
establish the Family Reunification Center (FRC) and the Family Assistance Center (FAC).

[0 Ensure both centers are located separately from the Joint Information Center (away from
the press), have a secure perimeter, and are scalable.

[0 Communicate FRC and FAC locations and services in press briefings.
[J Urge the coroner to release victim’'s names to families as soon as possible.

Establish the Victims Fund
[[] Establish a victims’ fund right away using city-operated 501(c)(3) charitable entity, the
National Compassion Fund, or a local foundation.
Begin Planning for Recovery

[0 Seek the guidance of mental health experts to develop trauma-informed messaging and
to ensure appropriate mental health services are available.

[J Plan vigils in consultation with families and the affected community.
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We are indebted to Pittsburgh Mayor William Peduto, who responded
with inspiring leadership and compassion to the tragic Tree of Life
Synagogue Shooting on October 27, 2018. He proposed this protocol
and playbook project to help mayors prepare for, respond to, and recover
from a public mass shooting in their communities.

We are grateful to all the mayors, staft, first responders, and experts

who generously contributed their time, experience, and expertise to this
project. We are also grateful for the support of Northeastern University,
our funders, and our advisors, especially Professor James Alan Fox, who
generously contributed his time and expertise throughout the project.

Finally, we acknowledge the tragic loss of life and the widespread trauma
caused by mass shootings in our country. It is our hope that the Mass
Shooting Protocol & Playbook will help mayors save lives and comfort
grieving families and community members.
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Foreword

in the early morning hours of August 4, 2019, a disturbed young man fatally shot nine people and
wounded 27 others with an AR-15 style pistol outside a bar in my city’s downtown entertainment area.
Our outstanding police responded in less than a minute of the first shot and killed the attacker. | received
the news no mayor wants to receive in the early hours of the morning, when the city attorney knocked on
my door.

Of course, every mayor must be prepared to handle a crisis, whether snowstorms in the Northeast, wild-
fires in the West, hurricanes in Florida, or flooding along the Mississippi. Less than three months before
the attack, my team and | responded to a tornado that ripped through Dayton. But these are familiar chal-
lenges. We know how to plow our streets even if there is a record amount of snow.

Mass shootings are a different kind of crisis. They are sudden, unexpected, and extremely traumatic to
large numbers of people in your community. As mayors, we are not responsible for the law enforcement
response, but we are responsible for the aftermath. How we handle this crisis will permanently affect the
lives of our residents and could be the most important work of our tenure in office.

Having lived through the experience, | now tell other mayors, “it isn’t if, but when” a mass shooting
happens in your community. You need to prepare. The best way to start is by planning a tabletop exercise
with your staff and the relevant stakeholders.

Fortunately, you have in your hands a resource that can help you to be as ready as you can be.
Researchers at Northeastern University’s Public Health Advocacy Institute interviewed me, Dayton Police
Chief Richard Biehl, and 13 others including mayors, law enforcement officials, and city staffers who
responded to a public mass shooting. The hard-earned experience of those interviewed is consolidated
in this Protocol, which can help you get through the first 24 hours of a shooting, and the Playbook, which
is filled with the best practices you can use 1o prepare, respond, and help your community recover from a
mass shooting.

I am proud to have been a part of this important project.
Mayor Nan Whaley

Dayton, OH
July 15, 2021
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Timeline of Mayoral Response
to a Public Mass Shooting

This timeline illustrates an aspirational mayoral response to a hypothetical public mass shooting. The time
frames are based on interviews with mayors, first responders, and subject matter experts. In response
to actual mass shootings, many mayors did not take these actions within the suggested time frames.

However, with advance planning (as recommended in

this playbook), the timeline shown is achievable

and would improve public safety and public health outcomes.

Day 1

« Shooting occurs

- Law enforcement response begins

+ Family and Friends Reception Center
(FRC) opens

+ Death notifications made within hours (ideally)

+ Emergency Operation Center (EOC) and
Joint Information Center (JIC) established

+ State of Emergency declared (optional)

« First press conference held

« First vigil takes place

Week 1

+ Funerals and vigils are scheduled

» Visit victims and families in FAC and hospital

+ Meet with mental health experts

» Messaging transitions from factual updates to
messages of healing

+ Begin responding to public record requests

= C4 team meets daily

+ Establish city website for regular updates

Later

- Potential criminal trial

+ Ongoing victim and family services

« Apply for funds to defray costs of response

» Plan first annual remembrance

+ Begin planning permanent memorial

» Conduct after-action review of response

+ Update training and protocols for future emergencies

viil

‘*;Ddyz

+ Victim’s Fund is launched to accept donations

» Key partners are contacted, including American
Red Cross and FBI Victim Services Division

= Meeting is held to determine Family Assistance
Center needs

» Family Assistance Center (FAC) opens

+ Presidential/VIP visits may take place

+ Regular press conferences begin

» Regular updates from law enforcement continue

+ Social media policy is implemented

Week 2

» FAC closes and Resiliency Center opens to
provide services to families and community

« Community board is formed to oversee victims'
fund management

« Meeting is held to determine Family Assistance
Center needs

UNITEDONGUNS
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Overview:
How to Use This Playbook

“It's not if, but when, a mass shooting happens in your community.”
= Mayor Nan Whaley, Dayton OH

When a mass public shooting takes place, it falls on our nation’s mayors to respond. Though suppartive
state and federal resources are available, there is no coordinated national response, and the response
largely falls to local governments to coordinate. The Protocol and Playbook are intended for mayors, city
managers, and their staff to help them prepare for, respond to, and recover from a public mass shooting.’
The best way to use this Playbook is to organize a tabletop exercise and use the Playbook as a reference
to inform your planning.

About this Playbook

The Protocol is a four-page overview of a mayor’s role during the first 24 hours after a mass shooting.

it highlights the key decisions the mayor will need to make and contains links to the Playbook that can
provide additional information as needed. A one-page checklist highlighting immediate action steps is also
included.

The Playbook is a resource guide that is informed by the recommendations and experience of mayors
who have responded to a mass shooting. It is organized into fen topic areas: communications, emergency
management, victims and families, law enforcement, donations, school shoctings, community partner-
ships, legal considerations, commemorations, and mental health. Each chapter includes the actions and
training that a mayor can take in advance of a mass shooting; actions a mayor should take during the re-
sponse phase; and guidance for providing services to victims, family members, and the broader commu-
nity as they recover. Each chapter includes a checklist and is intended to stand alone, so there is some
intentional duplication of resources and information.

Throughout the Playbook, key resources (prepared by the CDC, FEMA, the FBI, the Office of Victims As-
sistance, and other agencies) are highlighted. So are best practices shared by the mayors who participat-
ed in the research. Many chapters include a “mayors in action” vignette to illustrate how mayors handled
a particular challenge during their response to a shooting. Some of the chapters are cross cutting, includ-
ing the mental health and legal considerations chapters.

The Playbook also includes case briefs of the six shootings we researched. These case briefs may be
useful for planning and training purposes. There are also appendices that contain additional resources,
such as a compilation of all the training resources we found, funding resources, and information about
urban gun violence and suicide.

' We use “Mayors” and “Police Chiefs” throughout the Protocol and the Playbook to refer to the senior constitutional
and primary law enforcement officers in the jurisdiction, which may also include City Managers, Sheriffs, and other

officials.
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We note that local government structure and charters in the United States are not uniform. Some cities
have a “weak mayor” system in which a city manager directs most city agencies. Other cities have a
“strong mayor” who acts as the city executive. We interviewed mayors from both structures. Whether you
are the mayor of a small town or the mayor of a large city with complex executive functions, this Playbook
provides insights and resources that will assist you in the event of a public mass shooting.

We also note that this project focused on responding to public mass shootings. However, many of the
best practices may apply to other extreme emergencies, such as a terrorist attack or other mass casualty
incident, such as a building collapse or fire.

Mayors Helping Mayors

This Playbook was made possible by the generous support of the mayors who participated in this
research. They contributed generously of their time. They relived the emotional pain of their experience.
They freely shared their staff, their protocols, and their best practices with us. They did all this to help
other mayors.

Please share these resources with other mayors. Email the Protocol, along with your condolences, if a
public mass shooting happens on the watch of a mayor you know. Share the Playbock with members of
your staff and encourage them to plan a tabletop exercise. Encourage organizations that support mayors,
city managers, and other officials to share it with their members.

If you have experience you want to share, or have ideas, resources, or feedback that could improve this
Playbook, please contact: Sarah C. Peck at speck@phaionline.org.
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Research Methods
and Contributors

in fall 2019, a year after the horrific Tree of Life Synagogue Shooting took place in Pittsburgh, Sarah

Peck met with Mayor William Peduto. She asked what he, as mayor, had needed, but lacked, when called
upon to respond to the shooting. Mayor Peduto said that he would have benefitted from having a “mass
shooting protocol” to help guide his response to the shooting, but one did not exist. He suggested working
with mayors and other experts to develop such a protocol.

Together with colleagues at the Public Health Advocacy institute (PHAI), Mark Gottlieb and Emily Nink,
Ms. Peck launched a research project under the aegis of Northeastern University. As detailed below, a
semi-structured interview schedule was developed to derive input from mayors and officials who have
responded to a public mass shooting. The mayors’ experiences and existing public health resources were
then used to create the Mass Shooting Protocol and a supplemental resource guide, the Mass Shooting
Playbook. These resources can be used by mayors, city managers, and their staffs to prepare for,
respond to, and help their communities recover from the trauma of a mass shooting.

Methodology

The news organization Mother Jones has compiled a list of mass shootings in the U.S. dating back to
1982.! Mother Jones originally defined “mass shooting” as “indiscriminate rampages in public places
resulting in four or more victims killed by the attacker,” but in 2013 lowered the thresheld to three killed.
Mother Jones excluded “shootings stemming from more conventionally motivated crimes such as armed
robbery or gang violence,” domestic violence-related murders, and rampages that resulted in fewer than
the threshold number of victim fatalities. We selected potential research cases from the Mother Jones
database using the criteria described below. Note that other databases define “mass shooting” differently
(see footnote ii).

Inclusion Timeframe

We chose cases that took place between January 1, 2011 and December 31, 2019. We selected this
timeframe based on technological developments relevant to crisis response (e.g., use of social media by
public safety officials) and our ability to assess recovery efforts (for this reason, we excluded mass shoot-
ings in 2020 and 2021).

Exclusion Factors
We excluded cases with a deceased mayor, that involved sprees across multiple jurisdictions, or that
happened in unincorporated areas for which a local leader was not identifiable as the primary responder

to the incident. We also excluded cities that do not have a mayor as part of their government structure,
such as Newtown, CT, site of the December 2012 Sandy Hook Elementary School massacre.
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Population

Total

Selected . Shooting Location of I Year of Interview
in Year g Victims . e
Cases of MCI Category Shooting (Fatalities) Shooting Participants
. Airport / .
Washington, o Washington
DC. 619,371 Military / Navy Yard 20 (12)
Government
: S Umpgua 3
Roseburg, OR 21,937 School Community 18 (9) 2016 0
‘ ~ College ~ E
San Bemardino Inland
CA ! 214,112 Workplacei Regional 35 (14) 2015 2
‘ Center ;
o Indoor e i .
Orlando, FL 263,306 . Public. i 102 (49) . 2016 | B
: Reutr A : Nightclub : ~
Accommodation T o
. = Place of Tree of Life ‘ S
Pittsburgh, PA 303,587 ~ Worship Synagogue 17.(11) 2018 4
s drni . Marjory :
o : ‘ Stoneman ) ~ o
; Parkjand. FL | 30471 Schoo! | Douglas 34 (17 2018 1
: High School
: Oregon
Dayton, OH 140,569 QOutdoor event | it Ned 36 (9) 2019 3
: / Entertainment
Peppers Bar
. , Indoor Public : . |
El Paso, TX 679,813 A modation Wal-Mart Store | 48 (22) 2019 1
N=16

"We report the total victims and total fatalities that Mother Jones reports as of May 27, 2021. Note that these counts
do not include perpetrators who died or were wounded during the attack. Note alsc that there are many databases
tracking mass killings and some report different victim counts, depending on the interpretation of a victim and
methods used for gathering information. For more information, see James Fox & Jack Levin, Mass confusion

concerning mass murder, 40 THe CriMiNoLoGIST {2015).

i The victims of the San Bernardino shooting were county government employees, thus this case also has
“government” aspects.
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Diversity Factors

To ensure that the research results would be broadly useful to mayors across the country, we sought a
diverse group of possible respondents to interview. We invited women and men, mayors from across the
political spectrum, and mayors representing all major areas of the country: the East and West Coasts, the
Midwest, the South, and the Southwest regions. We selected both large and small cities. We also sought
racial diversity, although we were ultimately unable to recruit a Black mayor to participate in our sample.

We then re-categorized the Mother Jones list into six location categories of shootings: (1) airport, military,
and government; (2) workplace; (3) school; (4) place of worship; (5) outdoor event or entertainment; and
{6) public accommaodation (indoor). These categories were defined to highlight the unique challenges that
different mass shooting settings present to mayors and their staff.

Research Participants

Finally, within each category we chose the cases with the highest number of victims because they most
likely required a complex municipal response and ongoing recovery services for the victims, their families,
and the community as a whole. This selection process produced the eight public mass shooting cases
listed in the table below. We invited the mayors who had responded to these shootings to participate

in this research. Six agreed to be interviewed: the former and current mayors of Dayton, El Paso, San
Bernardino, Orlando, Parkland, and Pittsburgh.

To understand perceptions and observations of actions taken by the mayors, we also interviewed “key
informants” from each of the cities selected, including law enforcement officials, city staffers, and others
who were identified by these informants during interviews. In total, we interviewed 16 individuals between
December 2020 and March 2021. The number of respondents from each city is listed below.

Review Process

To ensure the accuracy and inclusivity of the content in the protocol and playbook, and to ensure they
become useful tools for mayors and their staff in the event of a tragedy, we requested multiple rounds

of review by members of our advisory group. First, at least one of our advisors reviewed each of the
chapters of the playbook (see list of advisors below). We then asked the following mayors’ chiefs of staff
to review the entire playbook: Torey Hollingsworth from Dayton, Heather Fagan from Orlando, and Dan
Gilman from Pittsburgh. Next, we invited each of the participating mayors to review the playbook. The
playbook in your hands incorporates the input, feedback, and experience of many who had to respond to
a mass shooting, as well as our advisors.

A Word About Community Gun Violence

Our focus for the Mass Shooting Playbook & Protocol is on “public mass shootings” because of the
extraordinary challenges they pose to mayors. However, we note these mass shootings account for only
0.4% of the victims killed in gun violence in the United States.> Many more people are killed each year in
gang- and drug-related homicides in U.S. urban centers. These shootings also traumatize the communi-
ties where they take place. This violence —often referred to as community gun violence —poses serious
challenges that all mayors must address. Importantly, there are research-based approaches that mayors
can and should employ to reduce the scourge of these shootings, save lives, and improve the lives of the
people who live in urban communities. Please see the Afterword on Community Gun Violence for more

information.

Page 5 UNITEDONGUNS



Research Advisors

Richard A. Daynard, J.D., Ph.D., PHAI President

Professor Daynard holds a J.D. from Harvard Law School, an M.A. in Sociology from Columbia Univer-
sity, and a Ph.D. from M.L.T. in Urban Studies and Planning (specializing in Law and Social Policy). He
is a University Distinguished Professor of Law at Northeastern University and the founder of the Public
Health Advocacy Institute (PHAI) at Northeastern University School of Law. Professor Daynard is devot-
ed to combating the epidemics caused by tobacco and, more recently, obesity and gun violence. He has
published over 80 articles, appeared in or been interviewed by major international media programs, and
spoken on these issues in more than 50 countries.

Dr. Matthew Miller, MD, MPH, ScD, Public Health and Firearm Injury Prevention Expert

Dr. Miller, a physician, is Professor of Health Sciences and Epidemiociogy at Northeastern University,
Adjunct Professor of Epidemiclogy at the Harvard School of Public Health, and Co-Director of the Harvard
Injury Control Research Center. Dr. Miller is an expert in injury and violence prevention. His research en-
compasses intentional and unintentional injury, with an emphasis on firearm-related violence and suicide
prevention. Dr. Miller is also Assistant Editor of the joumnal Injury Epidemiology and a recipient of the
Excellence in Science Award from the American Public Health Association.

Dr. Peter T. Masiakos, MS, MD, FACS, FAAP, Surgeon, Massachusetts General Hospital

Dr. Masiakos is a pediatric and thoracic surgeon at Mass General and an Associate Professor at Harvard
Medical School. He is the director of the pediatric trauma surgery service at Mass General and an inju-
ry-prevention advocate. Dr. Masiakos has focused on educating lawmakers on the risks certain products
pose to children. He is the co-founder of Mass General’s Center for Gun Violence Prevention, a multidis-
ciplinary initiative dedicated to preventing firearm-related violence and promoting safety in the homes and
communities of the hospital serves.

Robert A. Jones, Executive Director of Security, former FBI senior official

Mr. Jones is a 24-year veteran of the Federal Bureau of investigation. His distinguished career includes
domestic and international assignments, and expertise in the areas of counterterrorism, intelligence,

and weapons of mass destruction. Notably, Mr. Jones was the Special Agent in Charge of the Pittsburgh
Field Office, where he led the law enforcement response to the Tree of Life Synagogue shooting. He is
currently the Executive Director of Security for a professional sports team. Mr. Jones received a BA in
Administration of Justice from the Pennsylvania State University and a master’s degree in social science
from Syracuse University's Maxwell School of Public Affairs. Prior to joining the FBI, Mr. Jones served as
a U.S. Marine Corps infantry officer.

James Alan Fox, Ph.D., The Lipman Family Professcr of Criminology, Law, and Public Policy at
Northeastern University

Professor Fox is a widely recognized expert on mass shootings. He has published 18 books, dozens of
journal and magazine articles, and hundreds of freelance columns in newspapers around the country,
primarily in the areas of mass murder, youth crime, school and campus violence, workplace violence, and
capital punishment. He is a member of USA Today’s Board of Contributors, where his column appears
regularly. In addition, he was the founding editor of the Journal of Quantitative Criminology.

Page 6 UNITEDONGUNS



Mary Harvey, Ph.D., Director, Violence Transformed, Community Trauma Expert

Mary R. Harvey, Ph.D. is the Founding Director of Violence Transformed, a unique arts, public heaith and
social justice initiative. In addition, Dr. Harvey is an Associate Clinical Professor of Psychology in the De-
partment of Psychiatry at Harvard Medical School and founding director (now retired) of the Victims of Vi-
olence (VOV) Program of the Cambridge Health Alliance. A community and clinical psychologist, she has
lectured widely and written extensively about the ecological context of interpersonal and sexual violence,
the treatment of psychological trauma, and expressions of recovery and resiliency in trauma survivors.
She continues to serve as a Senior Psychologist at the Victims of Violence Program and, as an emerging
artist, has exhibited her work at both Violence Transformed and other area venues.

Endnotes

' Mark Foliman, Gavin Aronsen & Deanna Pan, US mass shootings, 1982-2021: Data from Mother Jones’
investigation, MoTtHer JonEes (2021), https://www.motherjones.com/politics/2012/12/mass-shootings-mother-jones-

full-data/ (last visited May 27, 2021).

2 The Fatterns and Prevalence of Mass Public Shootings in the United States, 1915—-2013, in THE WILEY HANDBOOK OF
THE PsycHoLoGY oF Mass StooTings 2035, https:#onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/abs/10.1002/9781119048015.ch2 (last

visited Aug 18, 2021).

Page 7 UNITEDONGUNS



Page 8 UNITEDONGUNS



Case Briefs

UNITEDONGUNS



Page 10 UNITEDONGUNS



Case Brief:
Dayton Oregon District Shooting

Introduction

In the early morning hours of August 4, 2019, a young man fatally shot nine people and wounded 17
others with an AR-15 style pistol outside a bar in the “Oregon District,” Dayton’s downtown entertainment
area.' The shooter was fatally shot by law enforcement officers, who responded within one minute of the
first shot.

This ¢case brief highlights the preparedness actions taken by Dayton Mayor Nan Whaley in advance of the
Oregon District shooting, immediate actions she took in response, and further actions she took to help her
community recover from the trauma.?2 PHAI researchers conducted semi-structured interviews with Mayor
Whaley, Dayton Police Chief Richard Biehl, and Chief of Staff Torey Hollingsworth.

Dayton’s mayoral response is noteworthy for the Mayor’s effective communication strategy, her close re-
lationship with the Chief of Police that aided in the response and recovery, and for her handling of the visit
of President Donald J. Trump, who was a divisive figure for many in her community.

City and Mayor Profile

Dayton is the sixth largest city in Ohio with more than 140,000 residents. Mayor Whaley, a Democrat
elected in 2013, serves alongside four other City Commissioners. Together they appoint a City Manager
to lead the city’s executive functions (a “Council-Manager” form of local government). The Mayor an-
nounced she would not seek re-election in 2021. She is now running for governor of Ohio.

Preparation
Training and Experience

Dayton officials cited a range of fraining and experience that was useful during their response to the Ore-
gon District Shocting. The Dayton Police Department participated in active shooter trainings through the
National Tactical Officers Association and the Chio Tactical Officers Association, though the Mayor and
her staff were not involved. The Fire Department/EMS conducted tabletop exercises to prepare the May-
or’s staff to respond to municipal emergencies such as water main breaks and natural disasters. Though
helpful in coordinating key emergency support functions after the shooting, these exercises did not
include planning relevant to the recovery phase of a public mass shooting. However, the Mayor said crisis
communications training she received through a private group helped prepare her for effectively commu-
nicating with the public after the shooting. She also mentioned that a previously established a relationship
with the Montgomery County Alcohol Drug Addiction and Mental Health Services (ADAMHS), one of 50
boards formed to oversee alcohol/drug treatment and behavioral health services in the state, was helpful
in crafting the city’s messaging.

' We report the total victims and fatalities that Mother Jones reports as of May 27, 2021. Note there are many
databases tracking mass killings; some report different victim counts. See James Fox & Jack Levin, Mass confusion
concerning mass murder, 40 Tre CriMiNOLOGIST (2015).

2 Dayton is one of six cities researched by the Public Health Advocacy Institute in 2020-21 to inform a Mass
Shooting Protocol & Playbook PHAI developed for mayors, city managers, and their staff. PHAI classified the
Oregon District Shooting as an outdoor public mass shooting.

Page 11 UNITEDONGUNS



Response
Communication

Mayor Whaley considered communication her primary responsibility after the shooting. She scheduled
regular updates to the media every three hours and conducted the briefings on schedule even if no new
information was available. She explained this is important to prevent the development of misinformation.
From the Joint Information Center (JIC) located at the Dayton Gonvention Center, the Mayor’s Chiet

of Staff and city communications professionals coordinated their messages with police and FBI Public
Information Officers (PIOs). The PIOs and the Mayor’s team agreed to hold press conferences jointly:
the Chiet of Police and law enforcement officials communicated about the investigation while the Mayor
communicated messages of resilience and unity. Additionally, the Mayor managed the speaking roles and
duties of other elected officials, as well as the visits of dignitaries including the President. The communi-
cations team worked overtime for a prolonged period after the shooting responding to the high volume of
media requests.

Victim and Family Assistance

The Family Reunification Center (which later served as the Family Assistance Center) was co-located
with the JIC at the Dayton Convention Center. This proved to be a problem because the press and city
staff in the JIC could hear the cries of grief as family members were notified of the deaths of their loved
ones. Further, family members were not adequately protected from the media. Therefore, the Mayor em-
phasizes the importance of separating the Family Reunification and Assistance Centers from the JIC and
the press.

The Victim's Advocates Team at the County’s Prosecutor office provided victim and family assistance ser-
vices at the Family Assistance Center. Unlike in other cities, the FBI Victim Services Division and Ameri-
can Red Cross were not the lead coordinators of victim services in Dayton. The Mayor’s staff coordinated
services initially and directed victims and families to the responding organizations as they reached out.
Everytown For Gun Safety provided “lighter touch” services for those who were not ready to seek formal
mental health services or grief counseling. The Mayor kept a respectful distance from victims and families
but called those who contacted her office.

Collaboration with Law Enforcement

The Mayor and the City Manager benefitted from a closs working relationship with each other and with
the Police Chief. This relationship was fortified through previous initiatives to combat opioid use, respond
to natural disasters, and address local immigration issues. The Dayton Police had primary jurisdiction
over the shooting, with the FBI providing additional support. The Mayor said she trusted both agencies
during the response and investigation based on her previous experience working with them. The effective
flow of information between law enforcement officials and the Mayor and her staff is noteworthy. Based at
the JIC, the City Manager received tactical updates from Dayton Police via the law enforcement PIO and
relayed those to the Mayor’s communications staff to craft messaging for press conferences.
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Vigils

Faith communities privately organized a vigil on the afternoon of August 4, 2019, the day of the shooting.
The “Downtown Dayton” business association, in partnership with several City Commissioners, organized
a candlelight vigil that evening. Mayor Whaley said she invited the Commissioners 1o participate in the or-
ganization of the second vigil to ensure they played a substantive role in the response. The Dayton Police
provided security for the event. A crowd of several hundred moumers at the candlelight vigil sang songs,
participated in prayers, and chanted “do something.” Mayor Whaley spoke at the candlelight vigil.

Presidential Visit

President Trump visited Dayton on August 7, 2019 before traveling to E! Paso, where another mass
shooting had occurred just hours after the Dayton shooting. The Mayor discouraged the President

from visiting the Oregon District, anticipating his visit would be divisive in her community. Instead, she
welcomed the President at the tarmac and directed him to visit with victims in the hospital, where his
presence might have a healing effect. Though the visit was short, the planning and coordination respon-
sibilities for the visit were a heavy lift for Mayor Whaley’s small staff, who worked overtime in the days
following the shooting.

Recovery
“The Tragedy Fund”

Within 12 hours of the shooting, Mayor Whaley asked a private charity, the Dayton Foundation, to es-
tablish a fund to receive donations from the public. Relying on the best practices of other cities that have
responded to mass shootings and terror attacks, the Foundation established the “Tragedy Fund.” The
Mayor was not directly involved in overseeing the Fund. The Foundation appointed a community over-
sight board, which determined how to allocate payouts to victims and family members. The Mayor desig-
nated a city staffer to serve as a non-voting member on the Board; this staffer kept the Mayor informed.

The Fund coliected nearly $4 million and distributed 100 percent of the donations 1o 47 applicants {victims
and family members). The Dayton Foundation waived all administrative fees associated with the Fund.
The allocation was: approximately 70 percent of the funds went to the families of the deceased, 20 percent
went to injured victims who were hospitalized for 48 hours or more, and the remaining 10 percent went to
victims who were treated and released from the hospital in less than 48 hours.

State Crime Victim Compensation

The Ohio Attorney General’s office paid $102,731 in state crime victim compensation to 29 victims of the
shooting. However, at least 19 victims who applied did not receive victim compensation from the state.
These victims were denied assistance due to past felony charges having nothing to do with the shooting
or because they had drugs in their system when they were injured. Mayor Whaley advocated for changes
to state law to ensure all victims of mass shootings receive the compensation and services they need.
Recent legislative proposals in Ohio aim to expand the definition of “victim” to cover more affected individ-
uals, increase the maximum claim for grief counseling, and lower barriers to receiving compensation.
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Funerals and Benefit Events

The Mayor further supported victims by attending all the funerals to which she was invited and support-
ing events to benefit victims and famities. Singer John Legend (in coordination with Everytown) hosted a
private event for families and survivors in the Oregon District a week after the shooting. The Mayor met
with him to discuss advocacy for gun violence prevention but did not attend the private event. She spoke
publicly when Dave Chapelle gave a public benefit concert a few weeks after the shooting. Volunteers
helped staff the event and the Dayton Chamber of Commerce raised funds for event security. The Mayor
issued a proclamation declaring August 25 *“Dave Chapelle Day” in Dayton.

Mental and Behavioral Health

Mayor Whaley emphasized the importance of understanding the long-term mental health needs of victims
and family members, law enforcement officers, city staff, and the broader impacted community. The May-
or worked with ADAMHS to ensure the city’s messaging was trauma-informed and healing, building on
past work with this group developing an approach to the opioid crisis. Mental health resources for victims
and families were provided through the County Prosecutor’s office. The Mayor worked to secure services
for first responders as well. She also modeled the importance of seeking mental health care by personal-
izing her messages and explaining that she was visiting a therapist in the aftermath of the shooting.

One Year Remembrance and Permanent Memorial

The cne-year remembrance of the event was impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. The city and com-
munity partners offered socially distant and virtual activities under the banner of #DaytonShines. Activities
included a memorial tree planted in the Oregon District on which notes of remembrance and seed packets
could be placed, an online photo mosaic, and nine minutes of silence starting at 8:04 PM, during which
the city shared a video tribute live on Facebook (no elected officials spoke). Community partners and the
city continue to collaborate on a potential permanent memorial.

Dayton: Key Takeaways

+ The Family Assistance Center and Joint Information Center/press area should be separate. The pe-
rimeter of the Family Assistance Center should be secure.

+ Advocate for adequate state crime victim compensation for all affected victims and family members.

« Schedule regular and frequent press briefings and conduct the briefings on schedule even if you do
not have all the answers.

+ Develop partnerships in advance with mental health experts and seek their guidance for help crafting
trauma-informed messaging during a crisis.

» Establish a victim’s fund as quickly as possible, ideally on the day of the shooting.

+ Direct VIP visitors to activities that can promote healing in the community and avoid situations in
which VIP visitors could be divisive for the community.

« Ensure first responders obtain appropriate mental health support.
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Case Brief:
El Paso Walmart Shooting

Introduction

On August 3, 2019, a shooter entered a Walmart in El Paso, Texas and fatally shot 22 peaple and injured
26 others with a WASR-10 AK-47-style semi-automatic rifle.! The victims were mostly Hispanic residents
of El Paso and Mexico. The FBI is investigating the shooting as a hate crime and an act of domestic
terrorism. The shooting has been described as the deadliest attack on the Hispanic community in modem
U.S. history.

This case brief discusses the City of El Paso’s preparation for, response to, and recovery from the
Walmart shooting in 2019, with an emphasis on Mayor Dee Margo’s role in all three phases.? The brief is
based on a semi-structured interview with Mayor Margo, background conversations with national part-
ners, and information gathered fram online resources.

El Paso’s mayoral response is hoteworthy for the Mayor's ability to mobilize corporate and community
partners, as well as the public, in key aspects of the response and recovery. Mayor Margo relied on his
significant national media experience gained through the focus on El Paso as part of the debate about
border security policy to advocate for the residents of El Paso. He also advocated for the speedy release
of death notifications to grieving family members. The El Paso United Family Resiliency Center exempli-
fies an important public health resource and best practice.

City and Mayor Profile

El Paso is a border city of more than 650,000 residents situated on the Rio Grande across from Ciu-

dad Juarez, Mexico. Mayor Margo, a Republican, served as Mayor from 2017 to 2021. Under El Paso’s
council-manager form of government, the Mayor is a voting member of the City Council and presides over
Council meetings and official city events and ceremonies. The City Manager oversees day-to-day opera-
tions of the city.

Preparation

Training and Experience

The El Paso police and fire departments participated in active shooter frainings prior to the shooting. The
local hospital also conducted an exercise involving mass casualties just before the shooting. The Mayor
cited the active shooter trainings and medical exercise as instrumental in the response.

In addition, El Paso’s Office of Emergency Management (OEM)—a joint effort between the city and the
county—maintains the Emergency Management Basic Plan and conducts regular trainings and exercises
to test emergency response capabilities.

' We report the total victims and fatalities that Mother Jones reports as of May 27, 2021. Note there are many
databases tracking mass killings; some report different victim counts. See James Fox & Jack Levin, Mass confusion
concerning mass murder, 40 Tue CriminoLoaisT (2015).

2 £l Paso is one of six cities researched by the Public Health Advocacy institute in 2020-21 to inform a Mass
Shooting Protocol & Playbook PHAI developed for mayors, city managers, and their staff. PHAI classified the
Walmart Shooting as an “indoor public accommeodation” mass shooting.
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The Mayor and his staff did not participate in any trainings relevant to the response to the Walmart
shooting. The Mayor recommends that mayors should observe a law enforcement active shooter drill.
Without such training, the Mayor admitted he had o devise his response as he went along. However, he
had significant national media experience due to El Paso’s border city status that he relied on during the
response.

Response

Communication

Mayor Margo was in Austin at the time of the shooting. He made immediate arrangements to fly back

to El Paso, arriving about three hours after the shooting. From the airport, the Mayor went directly to

the Emergency Operations Center at the 9/11 Fusion Center, which was also the location of the Joint
Information Center for the incident. The Mayor was briefed there by local police, the FBI, Public Safety,
and Department of Justice officials. He then spoke with these officials outside the Fusion Center at a press
conference that took place about seven hours after the shooting.

The Mayor’s messaging emphasized the theme of love over hate. He contrasted the fact that the killer
drove 700 miles to commit his hate crime with the peace-loving nature of El Paso’s residents. He later
explained in a press interview, “I've said from day one this [shooting] will not be a defining moment in our
history. ... | want to relegate it to an asterisk footnote.” After the first press conference, the Mayor delivered
daily press briefings with the Chief of Police to update the public about the status of the investigation.

Victim and Family Assistance

The El Paso OEM, the FBI, the American Red Cross (ARC), the Salvation Army, and the United Way col-
laborated to open a Family Reunification Center at a local middle school on the afternoon of the shooting.
Mayor Margo communicated with the governor and the assistant police chief, urging law enforcement
officials to expedite crime scene processing so that the families could receive death notifications quickly.

The El Paso Independent School District staffed the cafeteria to offer food to the families and community
members who arrived. The FBI Victim Services Division took witness statements and handled death notifi-
cations. They also maintained contact with area hospitals and trauma centers to update families about the
location of their loved ones. The Mayor visited the Family Reunification Center the evening of the shoot-
ing and visited injured victims in the hospital the next day.

OEM and ARC opened the Family Assistance Center (FAC) three days later at a nearby convention
center. It offered victims and families extensive services, including referrals to crime victim compensation,
grief counseling, and legal services. Immigration and travel services were of particular importance given
that seven fatalities were Mexican nationals (an additional resident of Ciudad Juarez who died was a
German national). The FAC closed after 10 days. The El Paso United Family Resilience Center (RC)
opened shortly thereafter to offer ongoing support to survivors (see below).

Blood donations were critically needed. Residents lined up for hours to donate in 100-degree heat,
requiring a response by volunteer organizations to distribute water and sunscreen. The Mayor donated
biood the day after the shooting and met with donors standing in line. He described the overwhelming
response to the request for blood donations as a moving demonstration of the community’s unity in the

face of crisis.
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Collaboration with Emergency Response

The EOC was located at the 9/11 Fusion Center, an all-crimes and all-hazards tactical information and
intelligence hub for the El Paso Police Department and the region. The Center is a collaborative between
local, state, and federal agencies in El Paso and Dona Ana County, New Mexico. The EOC was set up
within an hour of the shooting and a countywide emergency alert was issued about 77 minutes after the
shooting.

The OEM operates a Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) to educate volunteers about
disaster preparedness and train them in basic response so they can help support first responders during
a disaster. However, the CERT was not activated as the emergency response needs were met by
responding organizations.

Vigils

Many vigils were held in the days following the shooting, but were not hosted by the city. The largest vigil
was a bilingual service held at the baseball stadium attended by 8,000 community members from both
sides of the U.S.-Mexico border. Mayor Margo spoke at this vigil and focused his remarks on the victims,
“They represent generations of El Pasoans and Mexicans that have lived in unison and harmony through-
out our 350-year history.” He reprised his healing message, telling mourners, “hate will never overcome
our love.”

Presidential Visit

President Donald J. Trump visited El Paso four days after the shooting. The visit was opposed by some
elected officials and residents. Nevertheless, Mayor Margo met with the President at the 9/11 Fusion
Center, taking the opportunity to ask for “any and all federal resources available” to aid with response and
recovery. Although he received substantial criticism and even death threats for weicoming the President,
he considered hosting the visit an essential part of his duties. President Trump did not speak publicly.
Instead, he met with first responders to thank them and visited with families of three survivors who agreed
to meet him at the University Medical Center of El Paso (despite a petition signed by 1,000 medical staff
opposing his visit).

Recovery
"One Fund El Paso”

The National Compassion Fund administered the victims’ fund, One Fund El Paso. The Fund was a
collaboration between the city and local foundations: the Paso del Norte Community Foundation and the
El Paso Community Foundation. The Mayor promoted transparency in fund administration through weekly
updates in ¢ity council meetings. The fund organizers partnered with at least seven community organi-
zations to help victims and family members apply for funds. Information about the Fund was provided

in both English and Spanish. Community partners provided representatives to serve on a task force to
oversee the donations and create the distribution protocol. The Fund ultimately disbursed $11.8 million

to 355 victims and victims’ family members. An additional $50,000 was donated to the Resiliency Center
{see next section).

s
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Family Resiliency Center

Local and state agencies collaborated to establish the El Paso United Family Resiliency Center (RC)

to help survivors and families recover from trauma caused by the attack. Initially funded by a Victims of
Crime Act (VOCA) grant, the RC opened three months after the shooting. As of 2021, the RC is still open
and funded by the Office of the Governor and United Way El Paso. Notably, the RC provides services to
community members beyond the victims of the 2019 shooting. To promote long-term community healing,
the RC uses “resiliency navigators” to direct people to the resources of nearly 40 community-based or-
ganizations to provide individualized case management, referrals for counseling, financial planning, legal
guidance, spiritual care, and more. The support of these partners made it possible for the RC to meet the
changing needs of the community, facilitate programs tailored for specific populations, and reduce stigma
around receiving mental health care through outreach and education.

Remembrances and Permanent Memorials

The items left by the community at a makeshift memorial at the Walmart were preserved at a local history
museum. The city conducted focus groups with community members (including some family members of
victims) to understand how they wanted to memarialize the shooting. The families wanted to concentrate
the memorial in one location so as not to have a constant reminder of the tragedy. After these listening
sessions, Walmart held a private event to unveil its “Grand Candela” memorial, a 30-foot obelisk honoring
the victims with a “beacon of light.” At the same time, the COVID-19 pandemic limited the City’s ability to
host the one-year remembrance of the shooting. An online event in August 2020 was described as “not
ideal” for healing because of the lack of in-person contact.

State Crime Victim Compensation and Reimbursement for Recovery Costs

The State of Texas provided $5.5 million in funding to the City of El Paso for a range of services, including
psychological first aid, state behavioral health services, county reimbursements related to the prosecu-
tion, school-based mental health services, and the Family Resiliency Center to meet the ongoing mental
health needs of survivors.

Funerals

The Mayor attended every funeral except those in Mexico. He took care to emphasize that many of the
victims and grieving family members were Mexican citizens.

El Paso: Key Takeaways

« Crisis communications should focus on the unique characteristics of the community to help residents
overcome trauma and unite in solidarity.

+ Community partners can play a vital role in fund establishment, vigils, family assistance and resilience
centers, and memorials.

« Promote transparency and inclusivity when establishing the victims’ fund.

+ Blood donations need to be well-organized to protect the wellbeing of donors.
- States are an important source of funding for the response and recovery costs.
- The El Paso Resiliency Center is a model for other cities.
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Case Brief:

Orlando Pulse Nightclub Shooting

Introduction

On June 12, 2016, a shooter fatally shot 49 people and wounded 53 at Pulse, a gay nightclub celebrating
Latin night.! The shooter, who declared allegiance to I1SIS, used a Sig Sauer MCX semi-automatic rifle
and a Glock 17 semi-automatic pistol. He took hostages and engaged police in a three-hour standoff
before he was killed by law enforcement officials. FBI investigators declared the event a terrorist attack.

This case brief highlights preparedness actions taken by Orlando Mayor Buddy Dyer and his staff before
the Pulse shooting, and actions they took during the response and recovery phases.2 PHAI researchers
conducted semi-structured interviews with Mayor Dyer, Chief of Staff Heather Fagan, City CFO
Christopher McCuilion, Deputy Chief Venues Officer Craig Borkon, and Director of Strategic Partnerships
Kathy Devault. The researchers also arranged background conversations with subject matter experts and
reviewed online resources.

The Mayor’s response to the Pulse shooting illustrates a well-coordinated response by a large city with
sophisticated policing and municipal resources. The Mayor’s tabletop exercise befare the attack is note-
worthy, as is his management of key operations, including the OneOrlando fund, the Family Assistance
Center, and the Orlando United Assistance Center (a Resiliency Center). The Mayor empowered his staff
to act while focusing on his role as a voice for unity and healing on the international stage. Recognizing
the challenge of responding to a mass shooting, the Mayor sent city staff to aid other mayors in their
response to mass shootings in Las Vegas and Parkland.

City and Mayor Profile

Orlando is Florida’s third largest city with over 263,000 residents. Mayor Dyer is a registered Democrat
and has served as Mayor since 2003. The city government is of the “strong mayor” structure, in which the
Police Chief and city agencies report to the chief executive, the Mayor, who also sits on the City Council.

Preparation
Training and Experience

The Mayor hosts an annual tabletop exercise. Prior to the shooting, the Mayor and city officials conducted
a tabletop exercise on the theme of civil disobedience. The Fire Department operated the exercise; city
staff from emergency support functions (ESFs) participated. During the tabletop, the team developed a
social media protocol that was used during the response to the shooting. The Mayor and his staff cited
this exercise as highly instructive for the coordinated interagency response to the shooting.

' We report the total victims and fatalities that Mother Jones reports as of May 27, 2021. Note there are many
databases tracking mass killings; some report different victim counts. See James Fox & Jack Levin, Mass confusion
concerning mass murder, 40 Tae CrminoLoGIST (2015).

2 Orlando is one of six cities researched by the Public Health Advocacy Institute in 2020-21 to inform a Mass
Shooting Protocol & Playbook PHAI developed for mayors, city managers, and their staff. PHAI classified the Pulse
shooting as an indoor public accommodation mass shooting.

Page 19 UNITEDONGUNS



Additionally, city staff participated in joint exercises with the county, as emergency management is a
function of county government in Florida. Local law enforcement participated in tactical trainings involving
active shooting scenarios, including at school sites and the football stadium. Finally, city officials had
significant experience responding to natural disasters, such as hurricanes. They relied on their emergency
communications experience during the Pulse shooting response.

Response
Communication

Because the shooting took place in the middle of the night and there were concerns about explosives, the
Mayor and law enforcement officials postponed the first press conference until the scene was secured.
The Mayor then negotiated with the FBI about who would take the lead at the initial press conference. The
Mayor felt the first message about the attack and security status should come from the Mayor, because

he is trusted by the community, rather than an unrecognized FBI agent. After the Mayor spoke, law
enforcement officials provided details about the investigation. The press area was moved after elected
officials from outside Orlando spoke to the press even though they lacked information about the attack.
Recognizing the importance of coordinated and accurate messaging, the Mayor recommends securing the
press area.

Public Records Requests

City staff received hundreds of public records requests. The city promoted transparency and reduced
the impact of repetitive requests by hosting a webpage on which all public documents relating to Pulse
Nightclub and the shooting were published and regularly updated. The city also sought clarification from
a court before releasing 911 calls and transcripts. ThecCity released these within a week of receiving a
court order that clarified which calls and transcripts needed 1o be redacted to protect victims’ personal
information. Pulse-related records remain online today.

Victim and Family Assistance

Family reunification was initially provided at a nearby hospital but was soon overwhelmed and moved

to a nearby community center. Recognizing that the site could not accommodate the large number of
victims, family members, and friends, the Mayor asked city staff to stand up a Family Assistance Center
(FAC) at Camping World Stadium. The FAC opened the next morning. The stadium was chosen for its
size, secure perimeter, and ample parking. Both the American Red Cross and the FBI Victim Services
Division helped city staff establish and operate the FAC. Nearly 40 community-based organizations and
businesses provided services. Local law enforcement provided security. Services included mental health
care, immigration and travel services, child and pet care, and funeral services. Volunteer lawyers from the
local bar association provided pro bono legal services. Importantly, service providers were received at an
intake area that was separate from the entrance for victims and families. After operating the FAC for six
days, the city transitioned services to the Ortando United Assistance Center (OUAC) in collaboration with
Orange County and Heart of Fiorida United Way. The OUAC continues to support survivors with referrals
to mental health care and other services five years after the shooting.
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Collaboration with Law Enforcement

The Orlando police, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, FBI, and hostage negoctiators were involved
in the response. Mayor Dyer based himself in the mobile Command Center with his Chief of Staff Heather
Fagan and kept an appropriate distance from law enfércement operations. This uncommon arrangement
(mayors are often based on the Joint Information Center) allowed the Mayor to stay informed in real

time and base his communications on firsthand knowledge of the response. The mayor’s station in the
Command Center was made possible by pre-established personal relationships and mutual trust with law
enforcement officials.

Emergency Declaration and Disaster Aid

in consultation with the Mayor, Governor Rick Scott declared a state of emergency in Orange County

and Orlando following the shooting. According to the Mayor, this declaration relaxed rules related to
police overtime and allowed full deployment of emergency response staff. Due to the Mayor’s experience
responding to hurricanes, he believed the declaration would also make FEMA funding possible for excess
costs incurred by the city during the response. However, the Governor’s request for $5 million was
denied, in part because the state failed to demonstrate the response was beyond the capacity of state
and local government. However, the Small Business Administration (SBA) approved $353,000 for an
Economic injury Disaster Loan, which provided support for small businesses impacted by the shooting.
The declaration of emergency was necessary for the city to be eligible for this loan.

Vigils

City staff coordinated with faith leaders and community organizations that serve the LGBTQ+ and Latinx
communities to host an interfaith vigil. Because the event was declared a terrorist attack, Mayor Dyer
invited a respected local Muslim leader—Muhammad Musri, senior Imam of the Islamic Society of Central
Florida—to attend the vigil and press conferences to speak about his community’s rejection of hate crimes.
This was done to prevent possible retaliation attacks against the Muslim community. At the vigil, Musri
declared the support of the Muslim community for the victims of the tragedy, saying “we condemn the
ideology of hate and death and destruction and we call for all Muslim leaders and communities across this
nation and across the world to stand up and to deal with this cancer and to remove it once and for all.”

Recovery
The “OneOrlando” Fund

The city had an existing 501(c)(3) charitable entity. After receiving offers of sizable donations from local
corporate donors, including Disney, city staff quickly made adjustments to that entity so it could receive
donations from the public. On the advice of Boston officials who established the victims’ fund following the
Marathon bombing, city staff contacted attorney Kenneth Feinberg. He offered pro bono services on the
condition that existing funds be consolidated into one, unified fund. City staff heard from family members
of previous shootings that 100 percent of the money donated should go to victims and families; the city
followed that recommendation. The fund’s distribution protocol prioritized the families of deceased victims
for the highest payouts, injured victims for payouts in accordance with the length of their hospital stay, and
victims present at the scene but not physically injured for the lowest amounts,

s
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Mental and Behavioral Health

The Mayor recognized the far-reaching mental health impact of the shooting. In addition to the trauma
experienced by families and survivors, city staff were also traumatized by the event. For example, staff who
operated the Family Assistance Center were not prepared for the emotional impact of providing services
and had difficulty transitioning back to their normal duties after the Family Assistance Center closed. The
Mayor advocated for group therapy sessions for them and the use of therapy animals in City Hall.

Remembrances and Permanent Memorials

immediately following the shooting, the city hosted vigils and events that prompted local, national, and
international participation and mourning. The Pulse Foundation was established to provide a place for
reflection and to preserve photographs and items left at the site of the shooting. Staff from the History
Center worked around the clock to archive items left at the site by community members, such as flowers,
candles, and photographs. One year after the shooting, city staff worked with Orange County and the
onePULSE Foundation to host Orlando United Day. Buildings throughout Orlando and central Florida were
lit in rainbow colors. Events were also hosted by the University of Central Florida and other colleges. Tens
of thousands of community members attended Lake Eola Park Amphitheater for an evening of prayer, live
music, inspirational dance, and a moment of reflection for the victims. The city was involved in planning
and provided the security for the Lake Eola event. In June 2021, five years after the shooting, the city and
its partners again planned a week of remembrance events to honor the victims. The former site of the
Pulse Nightclub was designated as a permanent memorial in 2021, five years after the shooting.

Orlando: Key Takeaways

- Conduct a tabletop exercise to plan the interagency response to a mass shooting.

+ Secure the press area to prevent the spread of misinformation by uninformed speakers and elected
officials.

+ Post public information online to efficiently respond to intensive and repetitive public records requests.

» Venues used for family reunification and assistance need to be scalable and secured to accommo-
date the potentially large number of affected victims, family members, and (importantly) friends of the
victims.

» Public mass shootings may not be eligible for FEMA funds.

- Establish a 501{c)(3) in advance. It can be used for many things, including for a victims' fund following
a mass casualty event or natural disaster, or to receive donations for the families of fallen first re-
sponders.

» Family members from previous shootings advocate that 100% of the money raised should go to the
victims and their families.

» Mental hiealth services and other forms of support may be needed by survivors, family members and
friends for years after the shooting. In addition, plan to provide mental heatlth services for city employ-
ees who work on the response.
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Case Brief:

Parkland School Shooting

Introduction

On February 14, 2018, a troubled student opened fire on his classmates with an AR-15 rifle at Marjory
Stoneman Douglas High School in Parkland, FL, killing 17 people and injuring 17 others.! The shooter
was arrested an hour later in nearby Coral Springs. He was charged with 17 counts of murder and 17
counts of attempted murder.

This case brief discusses the City of Parkland’s preparation for, response to, and recovery from the
Parkland shooting, with an emphasis on Mayor Christine Hunschofsky’s role in all three phases.2 The
case study is based on findings from one semi-structured interview, background information obtained via
phone calls with experts and review of online materials, and a review of the National Police Foundation’s
after-action report on lessons learned from the incident and recommendations, which involved compre-
hensive information gathering.

The Parkland case iliustrates the unique issues posed by a school mass shooting, which command
national attention and are especially traumatizing for children and families. PHAI's research found that
advance preparation is especially important in.smaller cities that lack the resources of larger cities for
comprehensive emergency management planning, and where school shootings are more likely to take
place. Smaller cities responding to a school shooting may also face the challenge of coordinating multiple
divisions of government that do not report to the Mayor. Parkland’s mayoral response is noteworthy for
the Mayor’s compassionate leadership during a tragedy that affected community members she knew per-
sonally. The city's planning for the first annual remembrance event is also noteworthy as a best practice.

City Profile

Parkiand is a small, suburban city in Florida with 30,471 residents at the time of the shooting. The city has
a Commission-Manager form of local government. The City Commission has five voting members: Mayor,
Vice Mayor, and three Commissioners. Unlike the “strong mayor” form of local government, the Mayor’s
authority is limited and co-equal to that of the other Commissioners. The Mayor cannot direct staff or city
resources. That is the role of the professional City Manager, who has operational authority for city func-
tions. Mayor Hunschofsky, a Democrat, served as mayor from 2016-2020. In 2020, she was elected to the
Florida House of Representatives.

" We report the total victims and fatalities that Mother Jones reports as of May 27, 2021. Note there are many
databases tracking mass killings; seme report different victim counts. See James Fox & Jack Levin, Mass confusion
concerning mass murder, 40 Tae CrRiMiNOLOGIST (2015).

2 Parkland is one of six cities researched by the Public Health Advocacy institute in